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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of New
Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended March 31, 2003.

RESULT

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$14 million
and net loss attributable to the shareholders of HK$27.7 million for
the year ended March 31, 2003.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the fiscal year of 2003, the Group faced many challenges.
The economic downturn in Japan affected the number of Japanese
tourists visiting the Group’s retail outlet in Hong Kong, and the
death and illness incidents in Japan caused by the use of some
imported weight-loss products from China also caused temporary
loss of confidence in Chinese medicine related products among some
Japanese. With most of the existing business coming from Japanese
tourists visiting the Group’s retail outlet in Hong Kong, the Group’s
revenues for the year were significantly affected. While the outbreak
of war, the global economic downturn and the recent outbreak of
severe acute respiratory syndromes (“SARS"), will inevitably affect
Hong Kong tourism industry.

However, the Group has been actively implementing its business
plans to reduce the reliance on the Group’s retail outlet in Hong
Kong and to develop additional income sources. The Group had
successfully developed a total 13 health supplement products for
the Japanese local and Hong Kong market. These 13 health
supplement products are intended for those affected by diabetes,
hyperlipidemia, hypertension, obesity, pollinosis, constipation and
strengthening the liver and stomach, anti-ageing and intended for
regulating menstruation, pelvic inflammation, rheumatic arthritis. In
February 2003, the Group launched two of the Saussurea (XILE
) series’ products YUKINOBI (& 2 %) and YUKIOBI (Z)%3%), all
over Hong Kong through Watsons, a large drug store chain. The
Hangzhou outlet was soft opened in October 2002. However, the
result of Hangzhou outlet was not satisfied and with the outbreak
of war, the Hangzhou outlet had been closed in February 2003. The
Group’s first Japan membership center was opened in Tokyo in
September 2002 and the Group is presently assessing the results of
the membership center.

PROSPECTS

Although the U.S. government declared that the Irag war was
over on May 1, 2003, it was followed by the outbreak of SARS
which has more profound social and economic impact to Hong
Kong, especially in the sectors of tourism, air transportation, retailing
and catering industries. The Group had made an announcement on

New CHiNesE MEDICINE HolDinGs LiMITED % 8 % # B B R 2 =

BEBIRE

ANEREHTBEERAERA A (AR 7))
MAZHALDE REME AR ([AEE]) REBE
“ET-F-A=t - ULFEMEE -

¥

REZE-_ZE=F=-A=+—HIEFE K
EEERS L E ) 14,000,0008 7T » MR fEL
B 18,5 %8 527,700,000 7T °

3 JEI

R-FZE-EPREEAR AREECEHE
BHE - ANBARERE  KHRAKEEERE
MEEERNBEARTABEAMZHTE - ML
AARZ A E A E TP BIE O /R AEE a5l 3L
B SHARREDERPERLRHREED
ARNASERAEXBIBREARAKRBESE
MEEERHNBARE  RAREERFENHK
AXIBERE - BEBF  2HEETE B
I ESTBE I AR & ([SARS]) #5 Al % it
FEBRIRER -

Al AREBE-HERBHETHRESASE
EEBTEEMOKERE  YERAMBAKR
R ARERERNAE 3BREER - fHAX
BAREEMGHE - HWFEBERBEREARN
HOREKRRE  NERE  S0E - EHE - EH
I EWEBERM - LA BRICH MR R B 6
bz RERARBGHAL 28k BEN
BER - —TT=F_F AREHRLMERL
EERIEMm S2EREFEX BB -BAL
BHEFEEREZBBEE -MMOBEER
—EE-_ETAETEE - Al RN D H
[ERERIIBAS - I EEFRE  ARFERZ
ZZ=F_ABMANMNDHE - FEEER-F
F_ENARERRAREBEALAEESR L A%
BEALEAEZEREFLHMKE -

I

BAXBRFER _TZT=FHA—BEM
BERFURMES  BERBESARSHEBHE
REERSROTER /AR  LEHKESR
MEX TEXRRARENITBREREBE - A&
BERBEBRAIER EMRAEI7TI0HR-F

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 # #




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT 3 Ji& #t 4 &=

the GEM website on June 24, 2003 pursuant to paragraph 17.10 of
the GEM Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange to warn the Company’s
shareholders and public investors to exercise caution when dealing
in the Company’s shares.

The Board has responded to the abrupt disruption to its business
by controlling cost on expenditures such as reducing the staff cost
and enhancing the Group's distribution activities on the other,
although such measures may not immediately become apparent in
the short term.

As the World Health Organization (“WHO") had withdrawn its
travel advisory against non-essential travel to Hong Kong. In view
that Hong Kong has been removed from the list of areas with local
transmission of SARS, the Board expects that the Hong Kong tourism
industry will revive soon in the coming months. The Company is
also currently exploring new sales channels such as arrangement
with Japanese tour groups to distribute our products on their tour
buses travelling in Hong Kong and planning to launch new medicine
and health supplement products as to stimulate more revenue to
the Group in future. However, it is not possible to foresee the
development of the outbreak of SARS and how long the outbreak
of SARS will disrupt the Company’s operations.

OTHER BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES

The implementation of mandatory registration requirements for
proprietary Chinese medicine practitioners by the Hong Kong
Government has undoubtedly increase confidence in Chinese
medicine practitioner in Hong Kong. As more and more people in
Hong Kong are willing to seek medical consultations from Chinese
medicine practitioners, we believe this growing trend will offer good
market potential for the Group’s proprietary Chinese medicine and
health supplement products.

The Group is well poised to take advantage of China’s entry to
the World Trade Organization to expand business. The Group is also
planning to explore other potential markets to reduce reliance
currently placed on the Hong Kong tourism market. In view of the
huge market potential, the Group is currently seeking suitable PRC
business partners or investors to develop the PRC domestic Chinese
medicine market.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
our management and staff for their dedication and contribution to
the Group, and to thank our fellow business partners and
shareholders for their continuing support. We will endeavor to
explore every potential opportunity for business growth, creating a
promising future and better results in the year ahead.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2003, the Group faced many challenges.
The economic downturn in Japan affected the number of Japanese
tourists visiting the Group’s retail outlet in Hong Kong, and the
death and illness incidents in Japan caused by the use of some
imported weight-loss products from China also caused temporary
loss of confidence in Chinese medicine related products among some
Japanese. With most of the existing business coming from Japanese
tourists visiting the Group’s retail outlet in Hong Kong, the Group’s
revenues for the year were significantly affected. While the outbreak
of war, the global economic downturn and the recent outbreak of
SARS, will inevitably affect Hong Kong tourism industry.

However, the Group continued to follow its business plans to
(1) expand its distribution network; (2) enlarge its customer base;
(3) enlarge its product lines; and (4) expand its research and
development capability.

The Group has been pursuing its plan to establish distribution
outlets in Hangzhou, Beijing and Xian in the PRC. The Hangzhou
outlet was soft opened in October 2002 but the results of Hangzhou
outlet were not satisfied and with the outbreak of war, the Hangzhou
outlet had been closed in February 2003. The Group entered into a
letter of intent with a research institute in Beijing with respect to
the opening of a distribution outlet in Beijing. However, since the
outbreak of war and SARS, the opening of the Beijing outlet will be
postponed to the forth quarter of 2003. The Group is currently
seeking suitable PRC business partners or investors to develop the
PRC domestic Chinese medicine market.

For the overseas markets development, the Group continued to
seek suitable business partners in different countries during the
period under review. In April 2002, the Group entered into a
distribution agreement with a Canadian based health food distributor.
The Canadian distributor is responsible for marketing and distributing
the Group’s 8 new health supplement products to professional parties
including naturopathic doctors, TCM doctors and specialized health
food stores, drug stores and supermarkets in Canada. This move
marked a cornerstone in the Group’s penetration into the North
American market. In 2002, the Group engaged a number of
discussions with a U.S. nutritional supplement company with a view
to distributing the Group's new health supplement products through
this company’s sales channels in the United States. Since the outbreak
of war and up to the date of this report, no agreement has been
reached with this U.S. nutritional supplement company. The Group
has now decided to seek another business partners to assist the
Group in developing the U.S. market.

Over the years, the Group has successfully build up its brand
name, Kanpoyakudo (%5 %), and its customer base in the
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Japanese market. In order to encourage repeated purchases via the
Group’s health portal, www.newchinesemedic.com and solicit
referrals from its existing customers, the Group has been actively
pursuing its plan to establish a number of membership centres in
Japan to strengthen the brand loyalty. The Group’s first Japan
membership centre was opened in Tokyo in September 2002 and
the Group is presently assessing the results of the membership centre.
The Group also aims to open one more membership centre in Japan
in the third quarter of 2003. With the opening of the membership
centres in Japan, it is expected that both the Internet sales and the
number of referrals from club members will rise in the years ahead.

In addition to marketing to Japanese club members, the Group
also plans to market and distribute its new health supplement
product line in Japan through large local Japanese distributors or
large local health food chain stores. During the year, the Group
successfully developed a total of 8 health supplement products for
the Japanese local market. These 8 health supplement products are
intended for those affected by diabetes, hyperlipidemia,
hypertension, obesity, pollinosis, constipation and strengthening the
liver and stomach. These products are now in manufacturing stage
and due to the recent outbreak of SARS, we expect to launch these
products to Japan local market in the third quarter of 2003 through
the membership center in Japan.

In 2002, the Group successfully developed a new health
supplement product series for the Hong Kong market using Saussurea
(KILE &) as major ingredient. The Saussurea series is consisted of
4 products which are intended for regulating menstruation, pelvic
inflammation, rheumatic arthritis and anti-aging. In February 2003,
the Group launched two of the Saussurea series’ products, YUKINOBI
(£ 2 %) and YUKIJOBI (Z7% %), all over Hong Kong through
Watsons, a large drug store chains. The Group is presently assessing
the results of these two products and aims to launch the other two
Saussurea series’ products in the third quarter of 2003. We believe
that with successful introduction of new products to the market,
the Group is not only well positioned to satisfy different customer
needs and compete against its competitors in the Chinese medicine
and health supplement markets, but also to further enhance its
income base.

During the year, the Group entered into a number of agreements
with Sichuan Research Institute of New Medicine (the “SRI"”) and
the shareholders of SRI with respect to the acquisition of 51%
interests in the SRI and amending the terms of a number of existing
agreements between the Group and the SRI. The proposed
transactions were subsequently terminated in view of the substantial
change in the trading price of the shares of the Company. The
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research and development arrangement between the Company and
the SRI remains unchanged and will continue to be the same as
before the entering of the proposed transactions. The SRI will
continue to provide various services, including research and
development services, to the Group in accordance with the terms of
a number of existing agreements between the Group and the SRI.

The Company is also currently exploring new sales channels
such as arrangement with Japanese tour groups to distribute our
products on their tour buses travelling in Hong Kong and planning
to launch new medicine and health supplement products as to
stimulate more revenue to the Group in future. However, it is not
possible to foresee the development of the outbreak of SARS and
how long the outbreak of SARS will disrupt the Company’s
operations.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year of 2003, the Group recorded a turnover of about
HK$14 million. About 93.8% of the turnover was contributed by
the Group's retail outlet in Hong Kong. The Group’s outlet sales for
the period was about HK$13.2 million representing a decrease of
about 45.3% from the last year. In addition, the Group’s turnover
on e-commerce business also showed a decrease of about 66.3%
from last year. The economic downturn in Japan, and the temporary
loss of confidence in Chinese medicine related products among some
Japanese generated by bad publicity linked to a number of death
and illness incidents in Japan caused by the use of some imported
weight-loss products from China were the major factors causing
both the number of Japanese tourists and the average spending per
customer to drop. This was also partly attributed to the declaration
of war on Iraq by the U.S. government on March 20, 2003 and
partly due to the general concern of the fatal disease — SARS that
was first found in Hong Kong on March 10, 2003. Accordingly,
Japanese tourists coming to Hong Kong has shrunk significantly
since mid-March 2003. The number of Japanese tourists visited the
Group's retail outlet in Hong Kong dropped from last year's 80,472
to 49,608 this year. The average spending per customer from the
outlet sales also decreased to HK$265 from last year's HK$300.

In line with the decrease of the sales turnover, the gross profit
of the Group for the year period also decreased to about HK$6.1
million, representing a decrease of about 60.2% compared to last
year. The gross profit margin also decreased to about 43.4% from
57.4% in last year. The decrease of gross profit margin was mainly
caused by the structure of the commission arrangements with the
Japanese tour agencies. Under the commission arrangements with
the Japanese tour agencies, a portion of the commission was paid
either on a fixed amount per visitor visiting the outlet or on a
percentage of the purchase amount of the visitors visiting the outlet.
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As the former arrangement accounted for a large portion of the
total commission and when the sales turnover drops, the gross profit
margin will also decrease as the commission paid to the Japanese
tour agencies does not change in the same proportion.

Introducing fee payable to inbound Japanese tour operations
was the major component of the Group’s distribution and marketing
expenses. There was first found in introducing fee payable during
the year as a result of maintaining a favorable level of Japanese
tourists introduced by the Japanese tour operators in the economic
downturn period.

The administrative expenses of the Group for the year increased
to about HK$19.6 million, representing an increase of about 76.6%
compared to last year. The increase was mainly caused by the increase
of business development costs for the establishment of distribution
outlets in the PRC, the increase of establishment costs of first Japan
membership center in Tokyo and the increase in staff costs.

Loss attributable to the shareholders for the year amounted to
approximately HK$27.7 million.

SEGMENTAL RESULTS

The principal activities of the Group are sale of Chinese Medicine
through retail and e-commerce divisions. Both their turnover showed
a substantial decrease. The Group’s turnover and results are
substantially derived from Hong Kong. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical segment is presented.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

The Group’s primary sources of funds were cash provided by
the operating activities and balance of cash proceeds from the issue
of new shares pursuant to the listing exercise of the Company in
March 2002. As at March 31, 2003, the Group had total assets of
about HK$20.4 million (March 31, 2002: HK$42.3 million) which
were financed by current liabilities of HK$10.3 million (March 31,
2002: HK$4 million) and shareholders’ funds of about HK$10.1
million (March 31, 2002: HK$38.2 million). The current assets
amounted to about HK$10.4 million (March 31, 2002: HK$40
million). As at March 31, 2003, the Group had no bank borrowings
and had no long-term debt. The current assets to current liabilities
was about 1.

GEARING RATIO

The Group did not have any bank borrowing as at March 31,
2003 except for the short term bank overdraft and the Group had a
net cash position. In this regard, the Group's gearing ratio is 0.82%
(March 31, 2002: 0.16%), defined as the ratio between total
borrowing and shareholders’ funds.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has foreign currency risk as a significant portion of
the Group's turnover is denominated in the Japanese Yen. Fluctuation
of the exchange rates of Hong Kong dollars against the Japanese
Yen could affect the Group’ results of operations.

The Group closely monitors its foreign currency exposure by
converting the Japanese Yen received from the customers as soon
as practicable and does not hold position on Japanese Yen.

FUNDING AND TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy with
regard to its overall business operations and foreign currencies
receipts are converted into Hong Kong dollars and banked in at the
next banking day to minimize foreign exchange risks.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS
As at March 31, 2003, none of the Group’ assets was pledged
as security for liabilities (as at March 31, 2002: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year, the Group attempted to acquire 51% interest
in the SRI. The proposed acquisition was subsequently terminated in
December 2002.

In June 2003, the Group proposed to enter into an agreement
with an independent third party to acquire the medicine formulae
of five health supplement products for a total consideration of
HK$9,000,000 which will be satisfied by way of allotment and issue
of 90,000,000 new shares of the Company at HK$0.10 each to the
vendor. The Group had made an announcement on the GEM website
on June 26, 2003 to disclose the status of the proposed acquisition.
An announcement will be made shortly to disclose the details of
this proposed acquisition.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at March 31, 2003, the Group had no contingent liabilities
(as at March 31, 2002: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at March 31, 2003, the Group employed a total of 21 staff.
Remuneration is determined by reference to market terms, the
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee. Discretionary bonus based on individual performance and
the profit of the Group will be paid to employees as recognition of
and reward for their contribution. Other benefits include share option
scheme for eligible employees.
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVE WITH THE A CTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS %75 F B g ps kg 2 it

Set out below is a comparison between the Group's actual
business progress up to March 31, 2003 and its business objectives
as stated in the prospectus of the Company dated February 25,
2002:

I. TO EXPAND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
CAPABILITY AND PRODUCT LINES ON CHINESE
MEDICINE AND HEALTH SUPPLEMENT PRODUCTS

Proposed project progress

BREBER
Research and development on Chinese
medicine products

UENCE L V-

Conduct research and development projects

ETHRARERER

Launch new Chinese medicine products

HHEHPEEM

Research and development on health
supplement products

55 R B 3% 1R 12 /Z

Conduct research and development projects

ETHRARERER

WTRAEERE_TT=F=-A=1—H
FZEREBERBHNERARAR_-_FTZT_F
AT RRTEZERERMECEHEGEL
H#

. RAPERGBRERZHERARED
URERZRS

Actual project progress

BREBER

Commenced projects to enhance the Group’s
14 Chinese medicine products, to develop a
Chinese medicine product for menopause.
Finished the formulation and literature
research of it. Suspended development a
Chinese medicine product for allergic rhinitis.
ERERAEEIBPEERLFE —EE
DEFH P EEMZE - EXKET R
XEHREILE BTEREBBREELLZ
RBEEE o

Delayed as the research and development has

not yet finished.
FEHR - MR RBIE -

Research and development on a new health
supplement product line, the Saussurea (X L
ZE #) series, has finished. The Saussurea (<
Il ) series consists of 4 products which
are indicated for regulating menstruation,
pelvic inflammation, rheumatic arthritis and
anti-ageing. 2 of the Saussurea products had
launched over Hong Kong in February, 2003.
The remaining 2 products are ready for mass
production.

PHRBREMRLSERINAEREE T
e RIWSERTKH4 BERMEK - # 5
REDRBAL REBL REBULHEFAR
nEE HPMEXLZEERER_ZZ
SE_RERBEL  c HRAMEBEMmD £H
REEE -
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Proposed project progress

BERRBER

Launch health supplement products

¥ IR I2 E m

Joint research and development

HEHZERRE

Discuss with Hong Kong/overseas research institutes

HEE /BN EER

New CHiNesE MEDICINE HolDinGs LiMITED % 8 % # B B R 2 =

Actual project progress

BREEER

Research and development of 8 health
supplement products for the Japanese local
market had finished. These 8 products are
intended for those affected by diabetes,
hyperlipidemia, hypertension, obesity,
pollinosis, constipation and strengthening the
liver and stomach. Safety tests on these 8
products have been finished in Japan Food
Analysis Center which is approval
recommended by Ministry of Health, Labour
and Welfare in Japan. These 8 products are
ready for mass production.
SEEWRAAMGHREZEMOHETELS
X o ZBRERMARENRERRE - MAFB
® - =mMmE - ERE - ERE - BHOBE
RAEBICIFEIE - RAABESBERRE
HENBARBAN P OE THRZSRE MK
AR -  ZBRERRLEBRELE -

Substantial research and development on a
new health supplement product by using
natural cordyceps as main ingredient, which
is intended for anti-ageing, has finished.
BOTH—REBRAALBEERTENXD
ZEFNRZRERZMARRFEE -

8 health supplement products were launched
in the Group's retail outlet in Hong Kong.

SERRERCEAEETATEEHL

In February 2003, 2 of the Saussurea (XIUE
) series products, YUKINOBI (£ %) and
YUKIJOBI (£ 7% 3), had launched all over
Hong Kong through Watsons, a large drug
store chains. The advertising campaign is
started in February 2003.

RZZEZ=F_F MEBRLUEZERIEm
EZEREFR)EER B REEHESR
FBER#EL  T#H2E  BESHEER_-F
TZ=E_ARE -

Delayed because the Group wanted to focus
on finalising its current negotiations with
some well established research institute in the
PRC before commencing new discussions with
Hong Kong/overseas research institutes.

T8 ARAREFZREE MR HE
BREABMA  SPREESTERPEH
THRBETZANEEREEER -
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Proposed project progress

BERREER

Enter into join research cooperative arrangement

AVBAMRAFELTH

Conduct research and development projects

THERFAERR

TO PURSUE GEOGRAPHICAL EXPANSION OF Il.

DISTRIBUTION NETWORK IN THE PRC AND OF THE
CUSTOMER BASE

Proposed project progress

BREBER
PRC distribution outlets
HE R B

Establish distribution outlets in Beijing and Hangzhou

FEAL TR R AN B 2R 2 85 75

Actual project progress

BREEER

Entered into a joint research agreement with
Chengdu University of Traditional Chinese
Medicine with a view of forming a research
and development platform in Chengdu to
research, develop and market modernised
Chinese medicine and health supplement
products to international markets.

HEPBERRREEASERB AT HE
REBRUMEREELE - UHE - BA%
FHEERRCFERFRBER - KRB
% o

The Group is reviewing a proposal of
developing a new health supplement product
series targeting children and teenagers with
Chengdu University of Traditional Chinese
Medicine. However, the project had temporary

suspended due to the outbreak of war and
SARS.
AEBEERNBETFEKHBPTBENZHSH
E-HANRERFEARURNZHMREE
m R 2 EE - AR - %A E EEFE KSARS
BREEELR -

BRETERTIERABREREFE

i

Actual project progress

BREEER

The Hangzhou outlet was soft opened in
October 2002 but closed in February 2003
due to unsatisfactory results and the outbreak
of war. Entered into a letter of intent with
the Chinese Academy of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (“CATCM") in September 2002 with
respect to the opening of a distribution outlet
in Beijing. However, since the outbreak of war
and SARS, the opening of the Beijing outlet
will be postponed to the forth quarter of

2003.

MMOBEEER_Z2_F+ARTHE
BRXETEEREFEE IMNIEER
“ET-F_AKE R-FE-_HFNA-

H1Chinese Academy of Traditional Chinese
Medicine([ CATCM]) 33 1t 25938 2 445 2
FIBAE o AW - MRREEEF RSARS © F
BRUARDEERTERE_TT=FFNF -
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Proposed project progress

BERRBER

Market the PRC distribution outlets to tour agencies

() B 17 4L e R P B ) 8 IR

Identify site location for the outlet in Xian

RARDHERYL

E-customer referral programme
FLEFEENZ

Establish overseas membership centers in Japan

HEHAKILBING EH D

Launch membership promotional campaigns

EHE BB

Expansion to overseas markets

BB TS

Discuss with US distributors, wholesalers and/or large
chain stores

BXBESHRE  HEBR/ AR EHEF

Enter into agreements with US distributors,
wholesalers and/or large chain stores

BXBEHHE  HEBR/ IREEHETLHE

ZERERA

=

Actual project progress

BREEER

Commenced but finally terminated to market
the Hangzhou outlet to tour agencies due to
unsatisfactory results and outbreak of war.
EHERZETEERBEHFIREKIER
HRATHE BTN D HEIE -

The Group is still evaluating different site
options and aims to open the Xian outlet in
the forth quarter of 2003.
AEEREFFELEARES  BHEL S
HER_ZT=FFNERE -

The first Japan membership center was
opened in Tokyo in September 2002.

ER_ZZ_FAAERRHAREMBLE
BHb e

Postponed due to some recent bad publicity
linked to a number of death and illness
incidents caused by the use of some imported
Chinese brands’ weight-loss products in Japan
and the outbreak of war and SARS.

EH - AR EAEARBETRETHE
FURIEE mal BE TIRERN - RIBEEF
NSARS °

Commenced discussions with a large US
nutritional supplement company (listed on
NASDAQ) regarding distributing the Group’s
products through this company’s sale channel.
However, the discussion was temporary
suspended due to change of market situation.
Mg —REBAUEERRERA A (%
NASDAQiﬁ)?ﬁ%ﬁiﬂéﬁ AEEEMHE
DHAKEERETER o A ﬁﬁl
m%IRE“WﬁF°

Entered into a distribution agreement with a
Canadian health food distributor to distribute
the Group’s health supplement products in
Canada. No agreement has been reached with
the US distributor due to change of market
situation.
EMEX—RERMABEEILEMERS
HASERBERZA#HGE - AMSER
BB WAREERERDHEALIHE -
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Proposed project progress

BERREER

Conduct feasibility studies on distributing products
to Australia and New Zealand

ROHERERMN L ERETATIHRR

Discuss with distributors, wholesalers and/or large
chain stores in Australia and New Zealand
Enter into agreements with distributors, wholesalers
and/or large chain stores in Australia and
New Zealand

ERMNEFEBESHEE  HEER K
KRB 3 85 5 1T R AT BB M %
FEBOEE  MBEAR WK
AEEHEER B

TO EXTEND BUSINESS INTO E-COMMERCE AND TO [I.

UTILISE THE INTERNET AS MARKETING MEDIUM

Proposed project progress

ERREER

Health Portal

R A P48 0

Review the software and hardware support and
upgrade the computer system and enhance features
on the portal

B R RBHEIERRABKASGAR
BMARFB®ZEE

Translate the portal content into Korean

BHAPTREATBERRX

“Medicine Street”
Continue to construct “Medicine Street”
e

[ 58 241 |
BEREBEY]

Add new products to “Medicine Street”

R EE an 0\ [ 88 254

Promote “Medicine Street” to the PRC pharmaceutical
manufacturers through other portals, exhibitions,
newsletters and other traditional media

BEREAMAFIRL  EEE B REMESEN
] P B U 2 P R A i

Actual project progress

BEREBER
The feasibility study is finished.
ATIEARE T -

Commenced discussions with a New Zealand
distributor in April 2002 and the Group
needed further valuation of the market and
continued to look for other suitable business
partners in these two countries.
RZZEE_FHARNEF —HHEHEER
EE o MASERE-—SHETISEEET
ZRAERRXSHEMSEEBRH -

TREGZETHERNAEHAES
mHEEREN

Actual project progress

BREEER

Review completed and a backup computer
server was built to protect data and images
files.

B AIRET - 1R 4 B R ) AR 2R AR & 2K
BREGBER -

Postponed as no qualified translator has been
identified to conduct the project.
MAYESERBEMETEHRAME
H o

Continued to construct Phase Il of the
“Medicine Street”.
BEZEE _HIBEF] -

Delayed because the “Medicine Street” was
still under construction. Will resume activities
upon completion of the “Medicine Street”.
EH - HR(BEY I NERERR - F8
i |k RANemERBIE -

Delayed and will resume activities upon
completion of the “Medicine Street”.

450 [ BB | Ak R A T
f o
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Proposed project progress

BREBER
Promote “Medicine Street” to the international

pharmaceutical manufacturers through other portals,
exhibitions, newsletters and other traditional media

BREMAPIRY RES GALEGEREN
Tr) 0 % SR 4 (R A4

Continue to identify and enter into on-line distribution
agreements with pharmaceutical manufacturers

BENCERRERARERERIT IR LD HE RS

Continue to establish b2b sales and marketing team

BEEIb2D HERTHEEKE

Provision of information on Chinese medicine
and health supplement products

RAEBTERRBRERZEH

Continue to update information in the Group's portal

BEFTHAEEAFIRYCEH

E-education platform
EFHEFE

Construct of the e-education platform

Finalise course structure and materials

BERREBE AN

New CHiNesE MEDICINE HolDinGs LiMITED % 8 % # B B R 2 =

Actual project progress

BREEER

Delayed and will resume activities upon
completion of the “Medicine Street”.

ALY (BB | Ak MR A T
f o

Delayed and will resume activities upon
completion of the “Medicine Street”.
RIS B | TREBISIRERR T
fE

Delayed and will resume activities upon
completion of the “Medicine Street”.
AR B | TREBISIRERR T
fE o

Continued to update information and the
number of pages increased from 6,900 to over
9,600.

BETHEN MBEHEZLH6,900 B
Zi3E9,600E ©

Suspended because a local university has just
started similar on-line education on Chinese
medicine. The Group is cumrently evaluating
the impacts.

EE ARAH—BASRRELUNSE P
BHE - AEEEFNEEBYE -

Suspended because a local university has just
started similar on-line education on Chinese
medicine. The Group is cumrently evaluating
the impacts.

EF ARA—HEASRMECLNSE P
BHE - AEEEFNEEBTE -
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING AND PUBLIC OFFER RERTABERSHERAR
During the period from March 7, 2002 (date of listing) to March ECEE TEE-F=-A+H(LWMEHE=ZF
31, 2003, the Group has incurred the following amounts to achieve E=ZF=ZA=Z1+—HHHEAR AEELCHH T
the business objectives as set out in the prospectus: REENERERNNAEBARE
Intended Funding Actual Funding
BgRES ERBRES
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Expansion of R&D capability and product BrRHPERREER
lines on Chinese medicine and health ZHELFEEEN
supplement products AR EE am R 51 3,580 9,991
Expansion of distribution network BRPE D HEAE
in the PRC, and its customer base P&y =E-%i
development of “e-customer referral ERIETEP
programme”, and development of NAEFE I RERE
overseas markets BN IS 10,650 4,651
Health portal enhancement, e-commerce SRR APT AL -
development and provision BERETHE
of on-line education MIRHEE FH2 3,000 931
Expansion of Hong Kong office BRAEAMER - 165
General working capital —BEEES 500 3,000
Total st 17,730 18,738

REASONS FOR DIFFERENCE USAGE OF PROCEEDS AND
FORECAST USAGE
1. The economic downturn in Japan affected the number of 1.

DRESRAAZRTE 2EH
ARAAEERE  tRAREERENT

Japanese tourists visiting the Group’ retail outlet in Hong Kong,
and the death and illness incidents in Japan caused by the use
of some imported weight-loss products from China also caused
temporary loss of confidence in Chinese medicine related
products among some Japanese, the Group's revenues for the
year were significantly affected. The Group intends to focus on
expansion of R&D capability and product lines in order to catch
up the recover of Hong Kong tourism industry and the
disappearance of the bad publicity of Chinese medicine related
products among some Japanese. In addition, the Group intends
to increase the number of products as soon as possible to
satisfy different market and customer needs in order to enhance
the income base.

HK$3 million was budgeted for the opening of the Beijing outlet.
Due to the delay in opening the Beijing outlet, this amount has
not been spent.

Due to the delay in the construction of the “Medicine Street”
and suspension of the E-education platform, the budget amount
for the promotion of the “Medicine Street” and for the
construction of the E-education platform have not been utilised.

HK$0.5 million was budgeted for general working capital. Due
to the operating loss of the Group, more funding required to
finance the operations.

EEHOBAREAMEAMZIFE ML
A% A A T B O R IE E o
LG <AARRHTEMAPERLHX
EEL AREEAFENRAZIREY
E-AEBRRETERWELIRERSR
NEEEBBIRERER LB ARRTER S+
BEHBERNTREOR - I - AEEEE
RENMEMBE  URETRAMEREFH
E o femIB R KRARR -

Fakdt = 845 B E &) 53,000,000 BT » B

RIRDEEEHRRE - ZHBERADA -
AR BEY | BETFEMRERETHE

To o EEIBEEIRBEETHETA Y
BERBYAD -

& A500,00087C - ARAE

ZEEERM
BR HREEZESHER

ﬁ" ge

o

F@ﬂm
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Cheah Foo, aged 54, is the chairman of the Group.
He is responsible for overseeing the formulation of corporate strategy
and the overall management of the Group’s strategic planning and
business operations. Mr. Wong joined the Group in October 1994,
Mr. Wong was a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and has over 10 years of management
experience.

Ms. Leung Oi Wah, aged 36, is the vice chairlady and the
founder of the Group. Ms. Leung is responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning and the overall steering of the Group’s retail
operations and e-customer referral program. Ms, Leung has over 10
years of experience in the tourist-retailing business and is a pioneer
in introducing modernised Chinese medicine into Japanese tourist
industry in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lau Ka Ho, aged 28, is the company secretary, qualified
accountant and the finance director of the Group responsible for
the Group's finance and accounting functions. Mr. Lau joined the
Group in October 2002. Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Accountancy. Mr. Lau is
both an associate member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Lau worked as an auditor with an
international accounting firm for about 5 years.

Mr. Gao Junqing, aged 72, is the co-director of research and
development and is responsible for overseeing the Group's research
and development, in particular regarding the proprietary Chinese
medicine and health supplement products. Prior to joining the Group
in October 2000, Mr. Gao has been supportive to the Group thought
the collaboration between the Company and SRI. Mr. Gao is also
the director of the SRI and has been a committee member of a
number of research institutes of Chinese medicine in the PRC. In
addition, Mr. Gao has undertaken teaching and senior management
roles in various universities such as the West China University of
Medical Sciences in the PRC for over 40 years.

Professor Lin Daquan, aged 62, is the co-director of research
and development, in particular regarding biotechnology related
subject. Professor Lin has been a professor of biomedical engineering
at Chengdu University of Science and Technology since 1992 and
the vice director of the SRI. Professor Lin graduated from the Sichuan
University with a major in biophysics. He is the president of the
Sichuan University's research centre for human engineering and
medical equipment. Professor Lin joined the Group in October 2000.

New CHiNesE MEDICINE HolDinGs LiMITED % 8 % # B B R 2 =
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BEEERE 54 AKEXIFE BREEE

BERBZHE RAKBRBEIEIRXGLE

ZEBEE AALERN-ANEFTAMBAE

B -BARERRERFARETMRAEERS

B -BABBTHFERLR -

REELL 365 AEEITEREN
A BEREEY KN TEEAEETE
LHRBETESNALNE - PR ERETEY
FERERBTFRS  LAMKERRETRE
NBRAE S %5 -

ARZRE 285 ARELRAME - B8
BestmkMBes AL AKEMBEREHE
B BEAER ST _F+AMAREE - Bl
ERENBEREETIRBEHEELTEM - AR
ERFLAREHAMASRBEEGHMASERE
8 o RMAKXRAER - BIELEER—HBRRE S
MITEBRZEMITENTSE -

BRERE 25 MRALRHEBFEES
BEEEAREZHMARER  LEEABTK
ERRRER SEER_ZTTTF+TAMER
SE AT - EBA LT E )| 8 BT A 2 W (E
BEGEAKE - LA AM)I|H 8 ER A
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MARZHR 6255  WRANAEBFEES(L
HABREDHSEENE) - B—ANZFE -
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Professor Lin has participated in extensive researches in
anthropomorphic radiological phantom, biophysical functional
materials and synthesis of artificial radiological equivalent materials.
In recognition of his fine work in the field of biophysics, Professor
Lin has been awarded the National Invention Award of China and
the Scientific and Technological Award of the Ministry of Public
Health of China. He is also listed in the “Five Hundred Leaders of
Influence” published by the American Biographical Institute.

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Wan Choi Ha, aged 35, a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong
and is the principal of a solicitor’s firm, Messrs. Wan and Leung.
She was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Global Food Culture Group Limited in September 2000.

Mr. Junya Kabeya, aged 66, graduated with a degree in
political science from the Waseda University in 1959 and is currently
the managing director of two trading companies after his retirement
from the Japan based international airline group of companies in
1999.

Mr. Tsoi Chi Yin, aged 47, Mr. Tsoi is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Real Estate Administration. Prior to joining the Company
in May 2003, Mr. Tsoi has 21 years of experience in building
consultancy works. Mr. Tsoi is currently an executive director of a
building consultancy firm in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Kwok Hung, aged 53, is the marketing director of
the Group's retail operations and is responsible for maintaining
relationship and developing business opportunities with tour
operators and agencies as well as expanding the Group’s market
presence in the tourist industry. Mr. Wong has over 20 years of
experience in the tourist industry. Before joining the Group in June
1997 as the general manager of Kanpoyakudo (%5 % ) , Mr. Wong
held various positions with travel agencies and tourist shop
operations.

MR GEL2EBARIT R - OB
M RATIRSTEEEDH 2 aKERARR
TE - MEREEMYEBEAEEERR  BEXHE
i BDREIPEBERKEHE] R PR EBAE
BrIMBREME] - F % J American
Biographical InstitutefF A [ B RAFE 1 &
wlz3) e

BUFHTES

BEELZL 355 BAREEM - KAE
Ef 17T Messrs. Wan and LeungZ TEA - R =T ZF
ZENARZERRHARRCEEERLAE
UEHTES -

BRIE®EL 665 ERLERN TN
FEEXNFEORE  HABAMERML - — A
ANEB-HBABBEMERERRERKZE
BAXLBEMEIEEIMEES AR CEFTAR
I o

HEBRE 475 BLRERBAMETHR
AEHEEE - BR _ST=FAAMALRLRA
ZH REEBERERBENFLER - BRLERR
BAEE HMEEBRALRIHTES -

SREERE

FEERE 535 ARETEXHZTS
BE  ARAEKERARRKRITHRERARES
B YEAAGEAERERZTSHEER - L
REEREXBERB - T8 R-htH
NAMBASEREESEE 2BEER - BN
RITHRKEREETER -
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Mr. Guo Ping, aged 37, is the director of product development
and quality control. Mr. Guo is responsible for overseeing the research
and development of the Group’s proprietary Chinese medicine and
health supplement products. He is also in charge of liaising with the
SRI regarding all technical and medical issues and supervising the
implementation of the quality control procedures of the Group to
ensure that all proprietary Chinese medicine and health supplement
products of the Group comply with all applicable regulatory standards
with regard to quality and safety. Mr. Guo graduated from the
Chengdu University of Traditional Chinese Medicine ("CUTCM") with
a bachelor degree in medicine and a master degree in Chinese
herbology in 1986 and 1989 respectively. Mr. Guo possesses in-
depth knowledge in herb identification and quality analysis, herb
processing and preparation of commonly used herbal dose forms,
and the relations between the quality of herbs and their therapeutic
effects. Mr. Guo was sponsored by Sasagawa Medical Fellowship as
a visiting scholar in Japan to conduct research program for the
investigation of traditional medicines and herbs in the Toyama
Medical and Pharmaceutical University during the period form April
1996 to March 1997. Mr. Guo was also a guest professor conducting
lectures on foundation of traditional Chinese medicine, Chinese
herbology, Chinese herbal formulas and diet therapy in the
International College of Traditional Chinese Medicine in Victoria,
Canada during the period from September 1997 to September 1998.
Since 1999, Mr. Guo has been an associate professor of CUTCM in
Chinese herbology and in September 2000, has been admitted as
Ph.D candidate of Chinese herbology in CUTCM. MR. Guo is one of
the leading interpreters of traditional Chinese medicine in CUTCM.
Mr. Guo joined the Group in October 2000.

Ms. Tse Sau Mui, Axity, aged 38, is the general affairs manager
and is responsible for the day-to-day administration and personnel
functions of the Group. Ms. Tse graduated with a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Tse has over 10 years of experience in personnel and
administration management and joined the Group February 1999.

Mr. Hung Tit Sang, aged 52, is the shop manager and is
responsible for supervising the retail operations of Kanpoyakudo (/&
7 #EE) . Mr. Hung has over 10 years experience in the retailing

business targeting at Japanese tourists and joined the Group in
October 1994.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2003.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the marketing and distribution of proprietary
Chinese medicine. The Group is also engaged in research and
development and the manufacture of proprietary Chinese medicine.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2003
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 33 to the
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo (Chairman)
Ms. Leung Oi Wah (Vice-Chairlady)
Mr. Gao Junging
Professor Lin Daquan
Mr. Lau Ka Ho

(appointed on February 17, 2003)
Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Billy

(resigned on December 31, 2002)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Junya Kabeya
Ms. Wan Choi Ha
Mr. Tsoi Chi Yin
(appointed on May 14, 2003)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Gao Junging and Lin Daquan will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors expect Mr. Lau Ka Ho has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from February 1, 2002, which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other not
less than three months prior written notice.

Each of the non-executive directors except Mr. Tsoi Chi Yin has
been appointed for a term of one year and eleven months, and the
term of office shall expire on December 31, 2003.

Mr. Lau Ka Ho and Mr. Tsoi Chi Yin are not appointed for
specific terms.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save as disclosed in the “Directors’ service contracts”, the
continuing connected transactions and note 32 to the financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at March 31, 2003, the interests of the directors and chief
executive and their respective associates in the share capital of the
Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 29
of the Securities (Disclosure of interests) Ordinance (the “SDI
Ordinance”) were as follows:

Director Type of interest

= B ER

Ms. Leung Oi Wah Corporate (note 1)

REEL L D% (A1)
Mr. Gao Junging Other (note 2)
=EREEE Ht (ff722)
Professor Lin Daquan Other (note 2)
MR 2 HHE Ht (ff722)
Notes:

1. These shares are registered in the name of Great Fair Limited
("Great Fair”) and Wealth Way Limited (“Wealth Way"). Great
Fair and Wealth Way are wholly owned by Ms. Leung Oi Wah
("Ms. Leung”).
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2. These shares are registered in the name of Sichuan Research
Institute of New Medicine (“SRI”). Mr. Gao Junging and Mr. Lin
Daquan each owned 5% interest in SRI respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executive
nor their associates had any interests in any securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On February 1, 2002, the Company adopted two option
schemes, namely, the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” and the “Share
Option Scheme”. Particulars of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Details of specific categories of options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

2. ZEBROUMIFEBEARAEREEL - 2k
BEERMAZBESERAN) I MEBERR
FRE R 5%1HE 25 o

BEXFBREESN  SEERAREARE
=2 EABHEATBRAS AR AL A2
RAZEMEHRE -

BRERE

RZZZ-_F_A—0 ARARARAWER
BAERTE - D BIATE RS BAIRE REE )
R IRE RS ] - BB B RAF EMA B BUEE
BIRBRESE 2 FE  BRM B HRARME25-

BRI B IR B S WA 8 AR AT 813X 1 R AR
BEBRZHBOT

Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price per share
BHAH THEH BRITEE
February 18, 2002 September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 0.30
ZEEZF-HATNH —EE_FAAR+RE_ZETRE_At++H
February 18, 2002 March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 0.30
— T -F#- A+ )\H CEE=H¥=-A+HBE-_ZETRFE_Ft++t8H
February 18, 2002 March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 0.30
—ZEE-F-A+)\H —EEME=ZRA+tHE-_ZETRF_AT++H
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The following table discloses movement in the Company’s share

options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year
and the options outstanding as at March 31, 2003:

TREBARABREERARBRESER
HZBRERAFEANZEHRR _TT=F=
A=T—BRRTEZBBERE :

Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise as at during as at
Date of grant price  April 1, 2002 the year March 31, 2003
R-ZE-F R-ZE=F
A—H =ZA=+t-8H
#it A TR i RAT B AEEXN CEXE:
HK$
BT
Director
2
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo February 18, 2002 0.3 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
EEELAE e R WAN=
Ms. Leung Oi Wah February 18, 2002 0.3 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
REEZL - RWAN=
Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Billy February 18, 2002 0.3 4,500,000 (4,500,000) -
BRIEAHLE =t RWAN=
Sub total 13,500,000 (4,500,000) 9,000,000
bt
Senior Management
BREBEAER
Mr. Chan Kim Leung, Kenneth February 18, 2002 0.3 2,400,000 (2,400,000) -
BRie R &4 = R WAN=
Mr. Wong Kwok Hung February 18, 2002 0.3 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
TEELE = RWAN=
Ms. Tse Sau Mui, Axity February 18, 2002 0.3 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
HAEEE L —ZT-_F-A+NB
Mr. Hung Tit Sang February 18, 2002 0.3 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
LA LA i RWAN=
Sub total 9,600,000 (2,400,000) 7,200,000
INEE
Legal advisor to the Group
rEBEEREY
Mr. Wong Tak Fu February 18, 2002 0.3 2,400,000 - 2,400,000
ERERE —ZT-_F-A+NB
Total all categories 25,500,000 (6,900,000) 18,600,000

2R R A

New CHiNesE MEDICINE HolDinGs LiMITED % 8 % # B B R 2 =

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 # #




DIRECTORS’ REPORT # = 7 # & #

As of March 31, 2003, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme is 46,900,000, representing 10% of the issued share capital
at the balance sheet date.

No options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as disclosed in “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests
in securities” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at no time during
the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities,
including debentures, of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors or the chief executive; or their spouses or
children under the age 18 had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at March 31, 2003, the register of substantial shareholders
required to be maintained under Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance
showed that the following shareholders had an interest of 10% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company:

BRR &

Name of shareholders

Great Fair (Af5t1)
Wealth Way (Kf:#1)

Great Fair (note 1)

Wealth Way (note 1)

SRI (note 2)

Technique Enterprises Limited
("Technique Enterprises”) (note 3)

Notes:

1. Great Fair and Wealth Way are wholly owned by Ms. Leung, the
Vice-chairlady and the founder of the Group.

2. SRlis beneficially owned by Mr. Gao Junging, Professor Lin Daquan,
Mr. Gao Yang, Mr. Yang Cifen, Mr. Wang Yuanping, Mr. Gao
Feng, Mr. Qu Yong, Mr. Yan Xiaofeng, Mr. Guo Junying, Mr. Lin
Tao and Mr. Wang Li as to about 5%, 5%, 10%, 5%, 5%, 10%,
10%, 10%, 20%, 10% and 10% respectively.

3. Technique Enterprises is wholly owned by Mr. Cheung Chui who
is an independent third party.

BB R (fiE2)
Technique Enterprises Limited
([ Technique Enterprises|) (f#fz3)

RZZEZ=F=A=+—H BEBXIAH
ERA BRI R B B BT 2 RG
2B # £546,900,0008 - HREEHZBE T
PRAREE 10% -

AR B AR R TR AR AT )R 1 R A
ESWERORES 2EF

BRRITEEREF 2 & (7 st &l FR
REEN  RAFEAR  ARAIETMHEA
ARE2ETVEMZHBREARTNEETHENR
BARRREAEAERZBRNIEHES (B
BE%) MEM MBEFLHEBLT\HEATLZ
FHRETARBARAESF ZENTTEITE
ERZEER -

FERRK

RZZEZ=F=-A=+—H BEARAE
BOREREIE16(EMETLEEZRRAM
FiR ATHREFAEARA D BETRA10%3K
A bz #Es

Number of shares held
RO B E
Approximate
percentage of

Direct interest shareholding
EpEE  RRESEAL
89,435,440 19.07%
111,365,201 23.75%
52,000,000 11.09%
49,019,607 10.45%

et

1. Great Fair R Wealth Way ¥ i N E B & £ & K
Bl NR LT 2BHA -

2. BNFHBEREMMREBEL  HAZH
B-®BAE BRILE TEFEELE B
QRE - HMBELE APERE  HBERRE
EOMBRERIFASLERDSHES 2RO
B 5% 5% 10% 5% 5% 10% "
10% * 10% > 20% * 10%5% 10% °

3. Technique Enterprises B R B A A2 EHE
REERBUE=F -
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Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other interests representing 10% or more of the
Company's issued share capital as at March 31, 2003.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$97,805.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended March 31, 2003 are disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements.

During the year, the Group has entered into the following
continuing connected transactions under the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”):

1. Pursuant to a tenancy agreement dated October 10, 2000,
entered into between Fairco Investments Limited (”Fairco”)
as lessor and a subsidiary of the Company as lessee, the
Group agreed to lease office premises in Hunghom,
Kowloon from the lessor for a term of two years and four
months commencing from October 1, 2000 to January 31,
2003 at a monthly rental HK$75,000 (inclusive of rates,
government rent and management fee). The property is
occupied by the Group as office.

Fairco is a subsidiary of Great Fair, which holds 95% of the
issue share capital of the lessor. Great Fair is one of the
initial management shareholders and for the purpose of
the GEM Listing Rules, therefore, a connected person of
the Company.

The tenancy agreement was negotiated on an arm’s length
basis between the Group and Fairco. The Directors are of
the opinion that the terms of the agreement are on normal
commercial terms, being conducted in the usual and
ordinary course of business and are fair and reasonable so
far as the shareholders are concerned.

LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, a firm of independent
property valuers, confirmed in the prospectus of the
Company issued on February 25, 2002 (the "Prospectus”)
that the rental payable under the tenancy agreement is
fair and reasonable and the terms of the tenancy agreement
are at arm’s length and on normal commercial terms.
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This transaction is exempted from the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements
under Rules 20.25(3) of the GEM Listing Rules as the annual
total consideration of the transaction is less than
HK$1,000,000.

COMPETING INTEREST

During the year ended March 31, 2003 and up to the date of
this report, SRI is considered to be a substantial shareholder and
has an interest in a business which might potentially compete with
the business of the Group.

SRIis a research-oriented organisation located in Sichuan, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and is principally engaged in
(1) the provision of research and development services on Chinese
medicine and health supplement products; and (2) the research and
development and distribution of medical equipment. In order to
develop the Group’'s products continuously, the Group has been
engaging the SRI to support its research and development projects
since October 1994. The provision of research and development
services on Chinese medicine and health supplement products by
the SRI may compete with the business of the Group. Therefore,
pursuant to a research and management agreement dated November
2, 2000 as revised and supplemented by a supplemental agreement
dated January 11, 2002 entered into with SRI, SRI agreed to work
exclusively for the Group in respect of research and development
services for Chinese medicine and health supplement products and
SRI'will not develop its own Chinese medicine and health supplement
products or take up any other external jobs or assignments without
obtaining prior approval from the Group. The Group also has the
first right of refusal for the purchase of the intellectual property
rights of any new Chinese medicine and health supplement products
developed by SRI on SRIs own funding. Based on the above, the
directors consider that so far as the Group is concerned, competition
from SRl is remote and unlikely.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or the
management shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in any business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 100% of the Group’s total purchases
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
51.2% of the Group's total purchases.
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Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
were less than 30% of the Group's sales.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the issued capital of the Company) had any interest in
Group's major suppliers for the financial year ended March 31, 2003.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

The Group has complied with Board Practices and Procedures
as set out in Rules 5.28 to 5.39 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout
the financial year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws in the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee was established on February 1, 2002 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.23 to 5.25 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The audit committee comprise non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Junya Kabeya, Ms. Wan Choi Ha and the
Chairman of the Group, Mr. Wong Cheah Woo.

During the year, the audit committee held three meetings for
the purpose of reviewing the Company’s reports and accounts, and
providing advice and recommendations to the Board of Directors.

SPONSORS’ INTERESTS

Neither Kingston Corporate Finance Limited (“Kingston”) nor
its directors, employees or associates (as referred to Note 3 of Rule
6.35 of the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in any class of
securities of the Company or any other company in the Group
(including options or right to subscribe for such securities) as at
March 31, 2003.
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Pursuant to the agreement dated March 7, 2002 entered into
between the Company and Kingston, Kingston acts as the Company’s
continuing sponsor for the period commencing from March 7, 2002
to March 31, 2004.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Subsequent to March 31, 2003, the following significant events
have occurred:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

From April, 2003 and up to the date of the financial
statements, the Group had temporarily closed its retail
outlet in Hong Kong due to the outbreak of SARS. The
directors plan to re-open the Hong Kong retail outlet shortly.

In June, 2003, one creditor confirmed that it did not intend
to demand from the Group the repayment of the
outstanding balance of HK$4,000,000 within twelve months
from the balance sheet date.

In June, 2003, a substantial shareholder injected funding
of HK$2,000,000 into the Group to meet some of the
Group’s financial obligations and confirmed not to demand
from the Group the repayment of HK$2,000,000 within
twelve months from the balance sheet date.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
LEUNG Ol WAH
VICE-CHAIRLADY

Hong Kong, June 30, 2003
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Certified Public Accountants
26/F, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NEW CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEBEZRERAF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 33 to 71
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
However, we were unable to carry out audit procedures we
considered necessary in respect of an overseas subsidiary, accordingly,
we are unable to satisfy ourselves the following amounts included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated balance sheet
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which were prepared based on the unaudited management accounts
relating to the overseas subsidiary were fairly stated:

e turnover of approximately HK$203,000
e cost of sales of approximately HK$6,000

e distribution and marketing expenses of approximately
HK$502,000

e administrative expenses of approximately HK$1,633,000
e taxation of approximately HK$4,000

e Joss attributable to minority shareholders of approximately
HK$192,000

e debtors, deposits and prepayments of approximately
HK$224,000

e Dbank balances and cash of approximately of HK$259,000

e creditors and accrued charges of approximately of
HK$503,000

e amount due to a director of approximately of HK$158,000
e taxation payable of approximately HK$4,000

e minority interest balance of nil

Accordingly, we are also unable to satisfy ourselves whether
the amounts included in consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated cash flow statement and notes disclosure are fairly
stated.

Fundamental uncertainty relating to the going concern basis
In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of
the disclosure made in note 2 to the financial statements which
explains the current operating and liquidity difficulties of the Group.
The Group's retail outlet in Hong Kong was closed in April 2003
following the outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome and
remains closed as at the date of this report. The directors plan to
re-open the Hong Kong retail outlet shortly, although the precise
timing of re-opening is subject to the confirmation of Japanese tour
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party bookings. In June 2003, new funding was obtained to address
the Group’s short term liquidity difficulties. On this basis, the directors
consider that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future provided that
the Group can proceed with its planned re-opening of its Hong
Kong retail outlet. In the event, however, that the re-opening is
delayed additional funding will have to be sought. The financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which depends upon the re-opening of the Group’s retail outlet
and upon future funding being available. The financial statements
do not include any adjustments that would result from the failure
to re-open the Group's retail outlet or to obtain such funding. We
consider that the fundamental uncertainty has been adequately
disclosed in the financial statements and our opinion is not qualified
in this respect.

Qualified opinion arising from limitation of audit scope relating
to the overseas subsidiary

Except for any adjustment that might have been found to be
necessary had we been able to obtain sufficient evidence concerning
the amounts relating to the overseas subsidiary in the financial
statements described above, in our opinion the financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at March 31, 2003 and of the loss and cash flows of
the Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

In respect of the limitation on our work relating to the overseas

subsidiary as set out in the basis of opinion section of this report:

e we have not obtained all the information and explanations
that we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit;
and

e we are unable to determine whether proper books of
accounts had been kept.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, June 30, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT % & W % #

For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—AILFE

2003 2002

—EE=f§ ZETF

Notes HK$ HK$

ik BT BT

Turnover EEH 5 14,021,237 26,595,352
Cost of sales HEKA (7,942,809) |  (11,329,901)
Gross profit e 6,078,428 15,265,451
Other operating income H b 48 & WA 6 81,051 1,766,982
Distribution and marketing expenses DHEETSEERY (4,311,608) =
Administrative expenses THAX (19,585,550) | (11,090,432)
Allowances for doubtful debts REREE 7 (4,423,487) =
Other operating expenses Hi @ &5 Y (5,654,974) (2,130,660)
(Loss) profit from operations e (5 1E) & (27,816,140) 3,811,341
Finance costs BHEER (4,182) (1,401,250)
Share of results of a jointly controlled entity AE—ERREHEREE (14,415) 14,414
(Loss) profit before taxation Bl (& 18) &7 (27,834,737) 2,424,505
Taxation HIA 11 (3,848) (269,766)
(Loss) profit before minority interest Ret DERR HAER A (B1B) H5A (27,838,585) 2,154,739
Minority interest SEREER 191,850 =
Net (loss) profit for the year AEE (BE) 8 FE (27,646,735) 2,154,739
Dividend ) 12 - 8,586,250

(Loss) earnings per share Bk (1) &7 13

- Basic —-EK (5.89) centsiB 1l | 0.532 cent/&ll

- Diluted o (5.89) centsiB 1l | 0.530 cent/ &l
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CONSOLIDATED BAIANCE SHEFT % & & & f1 & #

At March 31,2003 R=-TT=f=A=+—H

2003 2002
—EE=f | —Z2T=F
Notes HK$ HK$
i et BT BT
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  BEREZE 14 711,713 1,020,418
Technical know-how B ig A 5k 15 9,266,667 =
Interest in a jointly controlled entity A — 2 [ 43 ) {3 28 # = 17 - 14,415
Deposit for formation of a new company K —E ARz ZE - 1,120,670
Deposit for management contract TEEEREAZES
of retail outlet - 200,000
9,978,380 2,355,503
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories T8 18 4,756,263 381,905
Amounts due from directors fEME = A 19 95,079 344,431
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWERIE « & RIBM KIE 20 4,499,980 15,978,240
Taxation recoverable A Y [0 7 18 329,160 497,231
Bank balances and cash RTBFRES 750,483 | 22,740,022
10,430,965 39,941,829
Current Liabilities nBAE
Creditors and accrued charges FETERIB R BT & 21 8,219,734 3,992,540
Amounts due to directors e ESFHIA 19 842,241 =
Amounts due to related companies JEE 1~ 8 38 A Al 38 22 1,146,313 -
Taxation payable JE 1 5 18 3,848 -
Bank overdrafts SBITEX 83,342 60,742
10,295,478 4,053,282
Net Current Assets mEEEFE 135,487 | 35,888,547
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERTEBAE 10,113,867 | 38,244,050
Capital and Reserves AR R & 16
Share capital [N 24 46,900,000 46,900,000
Reserves &1 (36,786,133)|  (8,655,950)
10,113,867 38,244,050

FBAEFNALHBHRREER -_FZT=FRX
AZTHEESeHERKERTT YA TIE

The financial statements on pages 33 to 71 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 30, 2003 and

signed on its behalf by: ERE:
Lau Ka Ho Leung Oi Wah
S REE
Director Director
EF EE
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BALANCE SHEET ¥ & 1 1§ %

At March 31,2003 R=-TT=f=A=+-—H

2003 2002
—BF=F| —TT-F
Notes HK$ HK$
k=3 BT BT

Non-current Asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries Rl E AR KA 16 13,000,000 | 40,000,000

Current Assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments e RN RIE 20 152,936 2,222,586
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN 16 59,400 10,375,812
Bank balances RITHETF 3,154 15,920,196
215,490 28,518,594
Current Liabilities nEBAE

Accrued charges fE5t & B 21 1,005,683 2,019,038
Amount due to a director T —REEHIA 19 18,000 =
Bank overdrafts BITEX 61,000 =
1,084,683 2,019,038
Net Current (Liabilities) Assets wE (BB EEFE (869,193)| 26,499,556
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERTEBAE 12,130,807 66,499,556

Capital and Reserves B A R i 16
Share capital f% 7K 24 46,900,000 46,900,000
Reserves i 26 (34,769,193)| 19,599,556
12,130,807 66,499,556

Lau Ka Ho Leung Oi Wah
tIE$ REE
Director Director
EE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY % & Mt W % B #

For the year ended March 31, 2003 #HZE

—RR=F=AS+-HILEE

Accumulated

Share Share Special  Exchange profits
capital premium reserve reserve (losses) Total
R
k& BRHEE REEE  OEXREE (&#) )
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B BT BT BT
At April 1, 2001 RZ2E-FNA—H 32 - - - 18,179,028 18,179,060
Issue of new shares upon the SEEAR
Group Reorganisation Bk 1,529 - - - = 1,529
Elimination of share capital SESHRHE
upon the Group Reorganisation B (1,560) - - - - (1,560)
Issue of shares upon the Group EESARRTL
Reorganisation & 1n 39,999,999 - - - - 39,999,999
Special reserve arising from the CEEANEAL
Group Reorganisation &Sl = - (39,998,440) - - (39,998,440)
Issue of shares through placing BREERAR
and public offer RERTRM 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
Placing of shares to investors BRTREBRE
through exercise of BRERREE
over-allotment option &R 900,000 - - - = 900,000
Premium arising on initial public ~ BRAREER
offer ELZHE - 34,500,000 - - - 34,500,000
Expenses incurred in connection  E{TRH 3| H 2
with the issue of shares 5T - (15,491,277) - - - (15,491,277)
Net profit for the year ERAT - - - - 2,154,739 2,154,739
Dividend paid ERRE - = = - (8,000,000) (8,000,000)
At March 31, 2002 WZZEZE-F=A=+—-H 46,900,000 19,008,723 (39,998,440) - 12,333,767 38,244,050
Exchange differences arising BREERBIMEE
on translation of financial BEsB U KRR
statements of operations FEECERZS
outside Hong Kong not MAGEES
recognised in the consolidated BRENER
income statement WA - - - 102,802 = 102,802
Net loss for the year EEBBERE - = = - (27,646,735) (27,646,735)
Dividend paid ERRE - = = - (586,250)  (586,250)
At March 31, 2003 WZZEZ=F=A=+—-H 46,900,000 19,008,723 (39,998,440) 102,802  (15,899,218) 10,113,867

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference

between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the Group Reorganisation prior to the

listing of the Company’s shares in 2002.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT % &

For the year ended March 31, 2003 &

2003 2002
—EE=HF | ZZTT-F
HK$ HK$
BT 78 JT
(Restated)
(Z51)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RExK
(Loss) profit from operations e (8 afl (27,816,140) 3,811,341
Adjustments for: Bt NFIEBEERE
Interest income FE KA (49,467)|  (1,766,982)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BEREE
and equipment ZIE 603,546 357,464
Amortisation of technical know-how iy A 34 2 8 5 4,633,333 =
Loss on disposals of property, plant HEWE BERR
and equipment Z BB 944,285 -
Allowances for doubtful debts REZREE 4,423,487 =
Operating cash flows before movements RAKEEREHA 2
in working capital REEXBHRENE (17,260,956) 2,401,823
Increase in inventories FE 2 (4,374,358) (201,830)
Decrease (increase) in debtors, FEMBRTE « & MTEN
deposits and prepayments FIB 2w () 6,809,759 (9,913,148)
Decrease in amounts due from directors JFE Wy 2 = 5B 2 R A 249,352 29,559,479
Increase (decrease) in creditors and ERERRETERZ
accrued charges i O ) 227,194 (922,891)
Cash (used in) from operations s I (FTFE) TSR & (14,349,009) | 20,923,433
Interest paid F R (4,182) |  (1,401,250)
Income tax paid BT S (329,680) | (4,474,731)
Income tax refunded EREFGH 497,751 =
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM RE K (FT3E)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EREFE (14,185,120)| 15,047,452
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYME  BELR (1,239,126) (217,370)
Purchase of technical know-how =R = R R P (9,900,000) =
Investment in a jointly controlled entity R—EfREHEE 2R E - (1)
Decrease in pledged bank deposit BEEARITERZH D - 100,000
Decrease (increase) in deposits paid BEffEE 2B (EM) 1,120,670 (1,320,670)
Interest received B F & 494,481 1,276,295
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEZDFMAREEHRE (9,523,975) (161,746)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT % & Bl & 7 & #

For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=1+—HILFE

2003 2002
—EE=F —2E-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(E51)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Proceeds from issue of shares, BT PTS FUA
net of expenses (MK L) - | 25,908,723
Convertible loan raised Bk ERESFE - 5,000,000
Redemption of convertible loans Bl E R - | (15,000,000)
Increase in amounts due to directors JENEZEEHRIEZEM 842,241 =
Increase in amounts due to JES A& N Al ZE
related companies Z 3B 1,146,313 -
Proceeds from minority shareholders REPHRREZFIA 191,850 -
Dividend paid B & (586,250) |  (8,000,000)
Interest received from subscription monies RERBHRE D WHE - 146,256
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETHFAESHESTFHE 1,594,154 8,054,979
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRhHFEEEEERZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R A) % inF 58 (22,114,941) | 22,940,685
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNzEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR HeEEHEHE 22,679,280 (261,405)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXgHyE
RATE CHANGES 102,802 =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEAER
AT END OF THE YEAR HeEEHEE 667,141 22,679,280
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH REeRBREEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEZEEDI
Bank balances and cash BITEGERES 750,483 22,740,022
Bank overdrafts SBITEX (83,342) (60,742)
667,141 22,679,280
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % #it # M 3

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 #

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 34.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Group
Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure of the Company
and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “Group”) in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the Company became the holding company of
the Group on August 6, 2001. The shares of the Company
have been listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange with
effect from March 7, 2002. The Group resulting from the
Group Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing entity.
Accordingly, the financial statements of the Group have been
prepared on the merger accounting basis as if the Company
had always been the holding company of the Group.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have given
careful consideration to the going concern status of the
Group against the background of its current operating and
liquidity difficulties.

Since the year end the Group has continued to incur losses.
The Group's retail outlet in Hong Kong was closed in April
2003 following the outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory
Syndrome (“SARS"”) and remains closed as at the date of
this report. The directors plan to re-open the Hong Kong
retail outlet shortly, although the precise timing of re-opening
is subject to the confirmation of Japanese tour party
bookings. The directors are also currently exploring new sales
channels and planning to launch new medicine and health
products so as to stimulate more revenue for the Group.

In June 2003, new funding was obtained to address the
Group’s short term liquidity difficulties. Firstly, the Group
obtained an advance of HK$2,000,000 from its substantial
shareholder who also confirmed not to demand from the
Group the repayment of HK$2,000,000 within twelve months
from the balance sheet date. Secondly, one of the creditors
confirmed not to demand repayment of the outstanding
amount of HK$4,000,000 within twelve months from the
balance sheet date.

For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % #it % W 3

I
a2

For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=F+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

The directors consider that the Group will be able to meet
in full its financial obligations as they fall due for the
foreseeable future provided that the Group can proceed with
its planned re-opening of its Hong Kong retail outlet. In the
event, however, that the re-opening is delayed, the directors
consider that they will also be able to seek additional funding.
Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis.

ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD
ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted for the first time
a number of new and revised Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants (the “HKSA"). The adoption of these
SSAPs has resulted in the inclusion of the statement of
changes in equity. Comparative amounts for the prior year
have been restated in order to achieve a consistent
presentation. In addition, the adoption of these new and
revised SSAPs has resulted in the following changes to the
Group’s accounting policies, but has had no significant effect
on the results for the current or prior accounting periods.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

Cash flow statements

Under SSAP 15 (Revised) “Cash flow statements”, cash flows
are classified under three headings — operating, investing
and financing, rather than the previous five headings. Interest
paid, interest received and dividends paid, which were
previously presented under a separate heading, are classified
as operating, investing and financing cash flows respectively.
Cash flows arising from taxes on income are classified as
operating activities, unless they can be separately identified
with investing or financing activities.

Employee benefits

SSAP 34 "Employee benefits” introduces measurement rules
for employee benefits, including retirement benefit plans.
Because the Group participates only in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes and share options schemes, the
adoption of SSAP 34 has not had any significant impact on
the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The financial statements have been prepared and in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are
as follows:

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =

AN BHRR2EE (F)

ESRR DRAKEEHNHEREE
BEREZZEE  EAKRBUBALETR
KRB - AKRESRARNEHEEE -
A WEASBTHERTEE  EF
SRABREMESKBINES - At - K
AEBREBESELEERRUMBRE -

RnaEBER

RAFE  AKEERRABT LS A
g ([BRB G MAE]) BMLE THA
FEEeFES R ([SFHEHE
BlI) o et MR F e EHEAEE
BHERERZEINAANHRESH RMA
BRZ2HX - BHEEFEZRILBHFE
REMBEAEHERZI - At - BE
FHBEFERE -

REREBR

BiEETERERE 155 (KET)  Re
RERKU=FERARE-LZ RER
BmE - MFBELAMER - BENBY
BREJZEMNME  BERAMEREMNEK
B BENRRERKE REKRER
TRE - RBARMXNREELEZRER
ERERKERY HUBLRBAKRE

ERBEXRBERN -

EEEA

S ERERFEMREERAN]SIARE
B (B REENEHE ) < EAA - i
RARERS BERBFRKEMNE
MENEHEHENFEMRHPHHRRL
BEIMEARE -

TESHEE
AMBRERDERELKATRERE o

AHMBRERDBEELEERR LR
BIMmE - RMZEBZSHBERDAT

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 #




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % #it # M 3

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 #

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to March 31 each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances within
the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which each venturer has an interest
are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The Group's interest in a jointly controlled entity is included
in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of
the net assets of the jointly controlled entity less any
identified impairment loss. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results of its jointly controlled entity is included
in the consolidated income statement.

The Company’s investment in a jointly controlled entity is
stated at cost, as reduced by any identified impairment loss.
The results of jointly controlled entity are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Turnover
Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable
for goods sold during the year.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Interest income from bank deposits and other receivables is
accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the interest rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and, equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, amortisation and any identified
impairment loss.
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For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=F+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off the
cost of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual value, where appropriate, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter
of the term of the
lease, or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Computer equipment

and system 30%
Furniture, fixture and

equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how represents the medicine related technical
know-how acquired. Technical know-how is stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any identified impairment
loss. Amortisation is provided to write off the cost over its
estimated useful life of three years on a straight-line basis.

Medicine research and development expenditure
Expenditure incurred on medicine research activities is
recognised as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from the
Group’s medicine development expenditure is recognised only
if it is anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on a
straight-line basis over its estimated economic useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Website development costs

Expenditure incurred in the development of new website
and enhancement of existing website, including expenditure
incurred in the development and enhancement of contents,
is recognised as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprise all costs of purchase, is
calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of the business less the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollar are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates ruling on the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollar are
re-translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates ruling on
the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on exchange
are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. All exchange differences arising on
consolidation are classified as equity and transferred to
translation reserve. Such translation differences are
recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which
the operation is disposed of.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year
as adjusted for items which are non-assessable or disallowed.
Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes
of certain items of income and expense in a different
accounting period from that in which they are recognised in
the financial statements. The tax effect of timing differences,
computed using the liability method, is recognised as deferred
taxation in the financial statements to the extent that it is
probable that a liability or an asset will crystallise in the
foreseeable future.
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For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=F+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. EEESTHEEH)
Operating leases REER
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of LT A SRR ke i A ARE 2
ownership remains with the lessors are accounted for as MA - AIEREREL -
operating leases.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the REBEEERNEN 2 Be DEFERL
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over FHA B SE R MR HAMBR
the relevant lease terms.
Retirement benefits scheme BIKEFIEE
Payments to the Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme AEERM AR E 2 MFNEHE
are charged as expenses as they fall due. NEE—BRZNR -
BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 5, RBRHEDH
Business segments EX D \
The principal activities of the Group are sale of Chinese AEBEZIZEBREBTERETHE
medicine through retail and E-Commerce divisions. These HETRE ZEXBNHAKEERTR
activities are the basis on which the Group reports its primary DEPE R 2 B -
segment information.
Segment information about these businesses is presented ZEEBLHOBEMZHNET -
below.
Year ended March 31, 2003 BE_ZTZE-F=-H=1+—HIFE
Retail E-Commerce Elimination Consolidated
28 EYHE 1 84 me
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
REVENUE KA
External sales HINHE 13,884,571 136,666 - 14,021,237
Inter-segment sales 7 &b 35 & 9,531 - (9,531) -
13,894,102 136,666 (9,531) 14,021,237
RESULT £ S
Segment loss 7 &b & B (9,481,763)  (1,355,840) (10,837,603)
Interest and other FE K E A
operating income BERA 81,051
Unallocated corporate RoBME
expenses il 2 (17,059,588)
Loss from operations REER (27,816,140)
Finance costs B%ER (4,182)
Share of results of a {5 — i £k B 72 1
jointly controlled entity (B (14,415)
Loss before taxation 754 Al % A (27,834,737)
Taxation 118 (3,848)
Loss before minority AR &t 2R B 2 A
interest Z &8 (27,838,585)
Minority interest DHREE S 191,850
Net loss for the year FEEE (27,646,735)
New CHiNese IMEDICINE Holpings LIMITED %7 8 % 2= & & IR 2 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2003 = 3
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For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—HIFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 53
(continued)
Business segments (continued)
At March 31, 2003

EB¥RED I (&)

R0 (#)
R_EFE=F=A=1+—H

BALANCE SHEET BEEBEX
Retail E-Commerce Consolidated
2 ETHE onEe
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT & T & T
ASSETS &
Segment assets BEE 1,739,250 321,146 2,060,396
Unallocated corporate assets PEGEEE 18,348,949
Consolidated total assets AREE 20,409,345
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities BEaE 1,738,808 - 1,738,808
Unallocated corporate liabilities PECE¥EE 8,556,670
Consolidated total liabilities mEBERE 10,295,478
OTHER INFORMATION H g R
Unallocated
Retail E-Commerce corporate Consolidated
Z2E€ ETHE RAOEBMAE oEe
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
& T & T & T & T
Additions to property, RNEWE - BE
plant and equipment & 1,167,419 71,707 - 1,239,126
Additions to technical N E R A
know-how - - 13,900,000 13,900,000
Deprecation of property,  #% * BiE &
plant and equipment REZHE 323,190 280,356 - 603,546
Amortisation of technical i 0% 2
know-how i - - 4,633,333 4,633,333
Allowances for doubtful ~ RIZEEEE
debts 2,380,000 - 2,043,487 4,423,487
Loss on disposal of HEWE - BE
property, plant and Bl ki
equipment 944,285 - - 944,285

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 #
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For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—AILFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 3 EBRHEDH (E)
(continued)
Business segments (continued) EXDI (E)
Year ended March 31, 2002 R-ZZFEZE-—F=H=+—H
Retail ~ E-Commerce Elimination  Consolidated
TE EFHE H i o
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
REVENUE Iy &=
External sales HHNEE 26,189,530 405,822 - 26,595,352
Inter-segment sales DEEE 26,657 = (26,657) =
Total revenue @ 26,216,187 405,822 (26,657) 26,595,352
Inter-segment sales are charged at cost. DEPHE LB AEHR -
RESULT |
Segment profit (loss) 280 A (B8 ) 10,413,132 (1,000,189) - 9,412,943
Interest and other FBEREA
operating income RPN 1,766,982
Unallocated corporate RoMME
expenses 53 (7,368,584)
Profit from operations L | 3,811,341
Finance costs BB R (1,401,250)
Share of result of a 4 — e L B 42
jointly controlled entity 1 58 % 75 14,414
Profit before taxation 7% Al A 2,424,505
Taxation 18 (269,766)
Net profit for the year FEF 2,154,739

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =
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For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—HIFE

5. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS 5. XX RiED I (&)
(continued)
Business segments (continued)

At March 31, 2002

R0 (#)
R-ZEFE_F=A=+—H

BALANCE SHEET EERRER
Retail ~ E-Commerce  Consolidated
TE  ITHH 54
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
ASSETS gE
Segment assets DR E 6,685,678 653,225 7,338,903
Interest in a jointly controlled A — 8 2 R
entity & 14,415
Unallocated corporate assets KO EEE 34,944,014
Consolidated total assets AWM EE 42,297,332
LIABILITIES &8
Segment liabilities DEE fE 1,213,845 - 1,213,845
Unallocated corporate liabilities AoREXEE 2,839,437
Consolidated total liabilities HARAR 4,053,282
OTHER INFORMATION HitE®
Retail ~ E-Commerce  Consolidated
TE  ITHH G4
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Additions to property, plant REWE  KE
and equipment P& 165,100 52,270 217,370
Depreciation of property, plant BENE KR
and equipment REITE 95,020 262,444 357,464

Certain financial information relating to business segment
for the year ended March 31, 2002 had been re-classified to
conform with the current years presentation.

Geographical segments

No geographical segment information is presented as over
90% of the Group's sales operations, results, assets and
liabilities are derived from Hong Kong.

HE - ZE - F=-fA=+—HItFEE#H
E¥BHBzETHBEREEEHHEN
REAXEEZEHRAR °

B E D 5
ARASEEBBORHERY X8
BENRBENRERE  RALEZIIRH
B EER
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For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—AILFE

6.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6. Hih& &l A
2003 2002
—EE=F —ETCF
HK$ HK$
BT 78 JT
Other operating income comprises: Hi g g WA B
Interest earned on bank deposits BITE A B 49,467 5,712
Write back of sundry creditors B JE {51 BR 3R 2 # [ 30,000 -
Foreign exchange gain, net SN S U a5 OF 58) 1,584 =
Interest earned on amount due fEUr — (7% B FIER B
from a director - 1,170,000
Interest earned on loan receivable e & K F & - 445,014
Interest earned from subscription monies 32 f& B {7 ZIEF B - 146,256
81,051 1,766,982
ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS 7. RREEE
2003 2002
—EE=F 2T F
HK$ HK$
BT ow
Allowances for doubtful debts comprise: ~ RZBEEESEIU T ZIE
Amount due from a substantial eI —EBRRE 2 KA
shareholder (note) (KizE) 1,529,227 =
Deposit paid to a supplier BERTF-—HERzES 514,260 -
Deposits paid to travel agencies BERTF-REREZES 2,380,000 -
4,423,487 -
Note: The substantial shareholder referred above is Sichuan Brax . LMz EBREAN)IFNERRTAH - =

Research Institute of New Chinese Medicine (“SRI"). The
directors considered that the amount due from SRI could
not be recovered. Accordingly, an allowance for bad debt

was made for this receivable.

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =
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For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—HIFE

(LOSS) PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 8. Reg (K &N
2003 2002
=f —TT_F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) profit from operations has been e m R (BE) B mk
arrived at after charging: TEI&IE :
Amortisation of technical know-how Biir Mgz #i5 (Bt A
(included in other operating expenses) HAth 4 & 5 2) 4,633,333 =
Auditors’ remuneration % 2R B
— Current - REE 400,000 200,000
— Underprovision in prior year - EFRETR 209,770 52,759
609,770 252,759
Business agent introduction fees (note i)  EBSRENRE (M) 3,000,000 -
Depreciation of property, plant ME  BEREE
and equipment 2 E 603,546 357,464
Loss on disposals on property, plant HEWE BERR
and equipment Z BB 944,285 -
Medicine research and development costs & ZE&fff 2% p /K 90,566 1,269,783
Operating lease rentals in respect of MEMEZKERD
rented premises e 1,636,055 900,000
Staff costs (note ii): 8 TARA (fYaZi)
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) B=WMe (M0 2,318,714 1,971,626
Other staff costs Hh 8 TR
— salaries and other allowances — T R At R RE 6,318,269 6,810,875
~ retirement benefit scheme — RINE A EF &I 5%
contribution 228,559 278,172
8,865,542 9,060,673
Website development cost 48 uk 2 R B AR 931,075 860,877
Notes: it et -
i Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the business i. *E%K%liﬁ%f”ﬂ%ﬁ(‘ TT=F
agent and the Group in April 2003, the parties concerned MARI 2 — B FIANERRE
have agreed to settle the introduction fees of HK$3,000,000 LAK%IE%EH%%M Bx i
by means of a deposit previously paid by the Group to the £ 5193,000,000 TN B E - BRZ
business agent in the prior year. As the services had been EBRER-_ZTT=F=A=+—H
rendered by the business agent before March 31, 2003, AREEARY  WEBRIELRF
the expense has been recognised during the year. R
i, Staff costs disclosed above included total retirement benefit ii. EXFERZE IRAE GRIKER

scheme contribution of HK$262,988 (2002: HK$314,172).

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 #

AT 8 50262,988B L (Z T —F :
314,172 7T ) 5t BER o

gz RER A New CHNESE MEpicNE HoLDINGS LIMITED




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % #it % W 3

B
(9,1
S

For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—AILFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MKER
2003 2002
—EE=F —ET-F
HK$ HK$
BT 78 JT
Interest on: THEBEZHE
Bank loan and overdrafts wholly BARAFABHEEL
repayable within five years RITEFRBEL 4,182 472,141
Convertible loans repayable within BREFANEEZ
five years CIEzY 4= - 929,109
4,182 1,401,250
10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 10. EEMEeREIEBESFMES
PAID EMPLOYEES
2003 2002
—EE=F —ET-F
HK$ HK$
BT 78 JT
Directors BEx
Fees Bwe - -
Other emoluments: Hii<
Salaries and other benefits 70N & E A8 F
(net of amount waived) (HIBRE MEHTE) 2,192,785 1,935,626
Bonuses xR 91,500 =
Retirement benefit scheme o8 18 & K
contributions (0B B MERE) 34,429 36,000
2,318,714 1,971,626
2003 2002
—EE=F —ET-F
HK$ HK$
BT o
Analysed into: DA
Director A EEH 220,000 357,000
Director B Ve 618,000 200,000
Director C = 1,068,600 935,481
Director D BEET 356,400 -
Director E BEER 55,714 -
Director F EEC - 479,145
Director G EE - -
Director H =EE¥ - -
2,318,714 1,971,626

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =
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For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 10. EEMEeRIEZBESHFMES (F)
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
The amounts disclosed above include other emoluments of Pl BRERBEBEEN TELENTE
HK$356,400 (2002: Nil) payable to independent non- 356,400 L (ZZ T =F : &) H b By
executive directors. No directors’ fees were payable to T BEMBEFE  RNEEWERBEF
independent non-executive directors in both years. HTESINENESHS -
During the year, two executive directors had waived part of REFER  EMBEERERSE M
their emoluments as follows: WE
2003 2002
—E8=H —TT_F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Director A ExF 371,000 -
Director B Ex2 474,000 -
845,000 -
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to RAEERN  AEETRERAZZTESIN
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the S - ERREMBRNINERZFH
Group or as compensation for loss of office. SHRIEAHREE MESNERETH
e o
Employees BE
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, four (2002: AEEL AR FNEEERENR (ZF
three) were directors of the Company whose emoluments ToF  ZR)RARAIES - HM2E5
are included above. The emoluments of the remaining one REX - B —Z (ZTTZF : MB) 2
(2002: two) individuals were as follows: BemT :
2003 2002
—2E=F —ET-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits Hr B &% L fth 48 A 290,500 573,117
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B2/t 8,000 23,000
298,500 596,117
AnNuAL REPORT 2003 £ # g R ER 2 A New CHNESE MEDICNE HolpINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—AILFE

11. TAXATION 1. HE

2003 2002
—2E=F —TT_F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

The charge comprises: HEXHBRE :

Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH

- Current year —REE - 330,200
— Overprovision in prior year — A EREEE - (60,434)
- 269,766
Taxation in other jurisdiction HMB AEERZHE 3,848 =
3,848 269,766

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the financial statements as the Group incurred a tax loss for
the year. In prior year, Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated

at 16% of the estimated assessable profit.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Details of unprovided deferred taxation are set out in note

ARAKEEAFEEASIBRBAEE &
REEMBHRERARBENSHERE -
EFE  BRNBH I FREMAER
B M A Z16%5T & -

HitipZE BB HANEEREE &R
ZBRITHEE -

ABBEEH R ZHBHNMIE23

23.
12. DIVIDEND 12. B’ E
2003 2002
—EB=H —TT_F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Dividend paid by a subsidiary to its —RNBRRAINEBEMAR
then shareholders prior to MEERRRIKE KRR
the Group Reorganisation - 8,000,000
Final dividend paid — Nil ENRERE —&
(2002: HK$0.125 cent per share) (ZZZ =% : §R0.12587T) - 586,250
- 8,586,250

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =
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For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—HIFE
13.  (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BR (B8 2R
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings BRERARES(BR BANDRET
per share is based on the following data: SISEEE
2003 2002
—E8=H —TT_F
HK$ HKS
BT BT
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic AEERERLEE (B18)
(loss) earnings per share AFFHEEB N (BE) &5
- Net (loss) profit for the year —F 8 (B 18) & A% (27,646,735) 2,154,739
Number of shares
R &% E
Weighted average number of shares FEERER (Eﬂ )
for the purpose of basic (loss) RNz 0l &)
earnings per share INHE 5 2 469,000,000 404,726,027
Effect of dilutive potential shares in B BERND
respect of share options Bz - 2,193,385
Weighted average number of shares AEEREE (BE)
for the purpose of diluted (loss) Rl iz 0l &)
earnings per share ANHE T35 2 469,000,000 406,919,412
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% BEERRE
Computer Furniture,
Leasehold equipment fixture and Motor
improvements and system equipment vehicles Total
BHRE BARE ‘
HE#E &S & RE my
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
THE GROUP r&EE
COST RA
At April 1, 2002 RZZEZE-F
MA—H 847,626 622,737 66,617 100,331 1,637,311
Additions NE 945,288 245,129 48,709 - 1,239,126
Disposals & (1,260,053) - - - (1,260,053)
At March 31, 2003 R-ZT=F
=A=+—H 532,861 867,866 115,326 100,331 1,616,384
DEPRECIATION AND HEREBH
AMORTISATION
At April 1, 2002 RZZEZE-F
MA—H 299,679 247,313 22,244 47,657 616,893
Provided for the year — FE B & 327,007 229,323 17,117 30,099 603,546
Eliminated on disposals  H & Bl (315,768) - - - (315,768)
At March 31, 2003 R-ZT=F
=A=+—H 310,918 476,636 39,361 77,756 904,671
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At March 31, 2003 R-ZET=F
=A=+—H 221,943 391,230 75,965 22,575 711,713
At March 31, 2002 R-ZE_&F
=A=+—H 547,947 375,424 44,373 52,674 1,020,418
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15. TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW 15. R EE
HK$
BT
THE GROUP KEE
COST K&
Addition and at March 31, 2003 REMR_ZEZE=F=ZA=+—H 13,900,000
AMORTISATION # 65
Provided for the year and at March 31, 2003 REBERR_ZE=F=A=1+—H 4,633,333
NET BOOK VALUE REE}WE
At March 31, 2003 R-_EE=F=F=+—H 9,266,667
16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RHBARAZKRE
THE COMPANY
¥ NN
2003 2002
=F S S
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEE W (RAE) 40,000,000 40,000,000
Less: Impairment loss W OmEEE (27,000,000) =
13,000,000 40,000,000

The allowance for impairment loss in respect of the costs of
unlisted shares of subsidiaries is based on the deficiency of
the investment costs over the recoverable amount of the

relevant subsidiaries attributable to the Group at March 31,
2003.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at March 31, 2003
are set out in note 34.

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt capital outstanding as
at the balance sheet date.

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =
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DRBEASER _TE=5=A=+—H
FBHEEREMNBRAIRERAIRENFE
RAEAMETE

ARAMBRAR-_ZT=F=A=1+—
AZFBEENHE34-
MERRZRRBEER - 8 R7E AR

CEMBARBETARERRE
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17. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 17. R—BHLEEHEEz2ER
THE GROUP
KEME

2003 2002
—2%=F —TTCF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Share of net assets DIEEEFE - 14,415
At March 31, 2003, the Group had interests in the following RZBEZE=F=A=+—H ' KEERT

jointly controlled entity: SISt EEFEE PR ER

Proportion of

Form of Principal nominal value
business Place of place of Class of of issued capital Principal
Name of company structure incorporation  operation share held  held by the Group activities
EEEE
Fiis R 6 BRITRA
RAER BEEBEFA HEMAIHE FTELERE  ER RHEBAL TEXK
%

KNCM Biotech Incorporated  Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 50 Inactive
Pharma Limited 18 % BH BH Lk TR
The accumulated loss of the Group included an accumulated AEBRHEEOERGHXRZEHERR
loss of HK$1 (2002: accumulated profit of HK$14,414) STEEBIBT(ZE22F: R5tafl

attributable by the jointly controlled entity. 14,4148 7T) ©
The financial statements of KNCM Biotech Pharma Limited KNCM Biotech Pharma Limited®f 5 $f & 1
are not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. FREY  BERHGAMITER
18. INVENTORIES 18. ®E&
THE GROUP
A%H
2003 2002
—2E=F —ET_F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials R# 4,196,128 253,985
Finished goods SUPK 560,135 127,920
4,756,263 381,905
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense amounted FERAI117343B L (ZTE_F -
to HK$1,117,343 (2002:HK$1,588,039). 1,588,039/ 7T ) BER MR °
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19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) DIRECTORS

Particulars of the amounts due from (to) directors are as

19. EBW () EEXRE
R (N ESFRIHEBHT ¢

follows:
THE GROUP
AEH
Maximum
amount
due from
Balance Balance the directors
at at during
3.31.2003 4.1.2002 the year
R-ZZBE=F R-ZE=F
=A=+-H MAE—H RAFE
k- - BE&R
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$
Directors EE i et BT 78 JT ow
Ms. Leung Oi Wah REELL (i) (221,241) = =
Ms. Leung Oi Wah REELL (iif) 85,079 344,431 670,000
Mr. Junya Kabeya BEA B0, 5% & (ii) (158,400) = =
Mr. Chan Wai Ming BRI B %5 & (i) (241,600) - -
Mr. Lau Ka Ho ARTRE (ii) (74,000) - -
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo BEBEE (i) (147,000) - -
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo BEBEE (iif) 10,000 - 10,000
(747,162) 344,431
Represented by: DMMTE
Amounts due from directors  EKZEEFHIE 95,079 344,431
Amounts due to directors JENESEHIE 842,241 =
THE COMPANY
PN
Maximum
amount
due from
Balance Balance the directors
at at during
3.31.2003 4.1.2002 the year
R=%2%=F -%2=F
=A=+-H ROA—H RAFE
- k- BE#&R
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$
Directors EE i et BT 78 JT v
Ms. Leung Oi Wah REELL (ii) (18,000) - -

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =
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19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) DIRECTORS (continued) 19. EW () BEEFE(F)

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

The amount due to Ms. Leung Oi Wah as at March 31,
2003 is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
There was no interest levied on the amount due from Ms.
Leung Oi Wah for the year ended March 31, 2003. During
the year ended March 31, 2002, the current account was
unsecured, interest bearing at 5.45% and repayable on
demand.

The amounts due to directors at March 31, 2003 represent
cash advances from the directors during the year. The
directors have confirmed that the amounts are unsecured,
interest free and will not be demanded for repayment within

et

(@)

(ii)

R-ZZTZT=F=RA=+—H EHES
RBELZL 7 RBEREER  RERR
TEREE REE_ZTT=F=F=
T-BEFER  BRRBELZ LMK
EARE REBE-ZEZT-_F=A=+
—BLLEE  BRZFBAEER U
SASERERREERER -

RIBZ=F=A=t+-HENESEHK
BAAEEESLTZRERN EF
BRAEHEREREER R RETE
MEEREH T —EARZRER -

twelve months from the balance sheet.

(iif) For the year ended March 31, 2003, the amount due from (iif) REBE-ZT=F=A=1+—HILF
directors are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on B ERESREARER 25 KR
demand. FEREER-

20. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 20, EWERE- - ZERENNE

K*Bﬁ@ﬁZﬁﬁE%ELA“““Jﬁm?%J? Al
MEKEZERBEZREH RN F0EE

The sales to the majority of customers were with terms of
cash on delivery. Other trade debtors were given the credit

terms for 30 to 90 days. 90H -
The following is an aged analysis of debtors, deposits and EWHRIE Re RENRBEREER 2K
prepayments as at the balance sheet date: Erain O
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rRE b N
2003 2002 2003 2002
=f —ET_F —EB=H —TT_F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Trade debtors FEY B 5 BRI
0 - 30 days 0—30H 57,323 - - -
31 - 60 days 31—60H 8,381 - - -
65,704 - - -
Prepayment and deposits B B RiZ S
— prepayments — B FRIA 203,481 6,502,854 152,936 2,222,586
~ deposits (note i) —&e (M) 300,000 5,480,000 - -
— deposit paid to — [ 4t 7 2 A
suppliers e 160,694 538,806 - -
664,175 12,521,660 152,936 2,222,586
Others (note ii) H At 5B (K 2ii) 3,770,101 3,456,580 - -
4,499,980 15,978,240 152,936 2,222,586

¢
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20. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 20, BEWERE- - ZERBENTE (F)

(continued)

Notes: fitat -

i. Deposits were paid to business agents for introducing i. ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ LAE A 7R
strategic partners and/or customers to the Group. SENBREEEER SR -

i Others included an amount of HK$3,000,000 (2002: i HitRIERFEAREENANED
HK$3,000,000) refundable deposit paid to a consultancy mm—HMBERRAIMNZ
company for procuring new businesses to the Group. 3,000,000‘}% T(ZEEZF

3,000,000/ 7T) AT REE & -
21. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 2. EBNREREER

The credit terms of the trade creditors range from 30 to N8 5RIE 2 RERH30E60H T

60 days. % o

The following is an aged analysis of creditors and accrued BNESREREFERNEERZ

charges as at the balance sheet date: Rie T T

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH VYN
2003 2002 2003 2002
=F —TT_F —EB=H —TT_F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT

0 to 30 days 0£30H 47,656 157,868 - -

31 to 60 days 31260H 309 - - -

61 to 90 days 61290H 24,533 - - -

> 90 days FE A 90H 14,558 35,435 - -

Trade creditors e E 58RI 87,056 193,303 - -

Other creditors and H 4 & 3RIE R

accrued expenses st & A 8,132,678 3,799,237 1,005,683 2,019,038
8,219,734 3,992,540 1,005,683 2,019,038
22. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 22. FE‘HB@L’D\ 1 5
Particulars of the amounts due to related companies were as ENBERRRBLHBRT :
follows:
THE GROUP
rEE
Name of related company Directors interested 2003 2002
BEATER RERZES =F —ETCF
HK$ HK$
THERT FTAT
Fairco Investments Limited Mr. Wong Cheah Foo 238,066 -
BEBEE
Wealth On Silk Limited Mr. Wong Cheah Foo 908,247 -
BEBEE
1,146,313 -
The above amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have MFERERR  2EREETEEN

no fixed repayment terms.
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Z=FZA=+-ALEFE

23. UNPROVIDED DEFERRED TAXATION 23. ARBBELHE
At the balance sheet date, the major components of REER  RBEBEELEREEE (BB 2
unrecognised deferred tax asset (liability) are as follows: FEHHWT -
THE GROUP
rEE
2003 2002
—EB=H —TT_F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Tax effect of timing difference FEMEARB Y&
because of: ZRA :
Excess of tax allowances over R EBBITE
depreciation (55,645) (53,669)
Tax losses I B 2,223,201 53,449
2,167,556 (220)

The amount of unprovided deferred tax credit (charge) of

AEERFEARBBEERALR (X

the Group for the year are as follows: H) eB|mT
2003 2002
—EE=F —ET-F
HK$ HK$
BT v
(Excess) shortfall of tax allowances B (BB) PRITE
over depreciation (1,976) 32,356
Tax losses arising (utilised) FEX(BE#H) 2RBEBE 2,169,752 (135,935)
2,167,776 (103,579)

The Company did not have any significant unprovided

deferred taxation at the balance sheet date.
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24. SHARE CAPITAL R 2
2003 2002
—EE=f 2T F
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
g ] EE R 8B BE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Shares of HK$0.1 each FREBE0NBT
i8]
Authorised: EERA
At beginning of year FNRER
and at end of year 2,000,000,000 200,000,000 | 2,000,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERBRA
At beginning of year REH (K it)
(note (a)) 469,000,000 46,900,000 1 32
Adjustment upon the & B &= AR
Group Reorganisation F{EH 2 %
(note (a)) (Kf#(a)) - - - (31
Issue of shares upon R & B &= AR
the Group BIT
Reorganisation 8]
(note (b)) (K7t (b)) - -| 399,999,999 39,999,999
Issue of shares through BBEERAR
placing and public BERTRM
offer (notes (c) & (d)) (K52 (c)&(d) - - 60,000,000 6,000,000
Placing of shares to BB ER
investors through ik E R
exercise of =)
over-allotment option (Bt 5t (c)&(d))
(notes (c) & (d)) - - 9,000,000 900,000
At end of year FIR 469,000,000 46,900,000 469,000,000 46,900,000
Notes: fitat -

The changes in the share capital of the Company took place during
the period ended March 31, 2002 are as follows:

(a) The Company was incorporated on October 30, 2000 with
an authorised share capital of HK$390,000 dividend into
3,900,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. One fully paid share was
allotted and issued to the subscriber for cash and

outstanding as at April 1, 2001. The share capital of the
Group as at April, 1, 2001 comprised the aggregate of the
outstanding share of the Company and the share capital of
NCM (BVI) at that date. Upon Group Reorganisation, the
share capital of NCM (BVI) of HK$31 was fully eliminated.

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =

REBE-—EE-—FE=-A=+—H 8K AA
ARAGHRTHNEE

(a) AARRZZZEZTFTA=THFEMK
Mo SAE R A390,0008T 0 B A
3,900,000 R EE0. 175 L@ °
AARMREARERET—RARKR
7 LB  MRZTZT—FHWA
—HEBRBEHRAN - AEER =T
Z—FNA—-BZRABERDRAK
A% 2R B 1 B NCM BV 2% B Bk S 2 48

o REEEMAE -

EILE 2 EMH -

NCM(BVI)AZ A 31
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 24, BRAE (&)

(b) Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Directors of the (b) BEAAREETER=_ZZ—F/\AX
Company on August 6, 2001, 399,999,999 shares were AEBZEMRER  ADAIME « &
allotted, issued and credited as fully paid at par as 17 RARE E A BRI E 2 399,999,999
consideration for the acquisition by the Company of the Bk @k - {E AU E New Chinese
entire issued share capital of New Chinese Medicine (BVI) Medicine (BVI) Limited ([NCM(BVI)]) &
Limited (“NCM (BVI)"). B BATRRM Z AL MB -

(c) Pursuant to another written resolution of all shareholders (c) BEARRZERER-_TZT_F_A
of the Company passed on February 1, 2002, the placing —HBRzS —BEBAZR AR
and public offer of an aggregate of 60,000,000 shares B RAFEES £60,000,0008% F 8k E
(subject to over-allotment option) of HK$0.1 each were BONEALR G (R FRER REMm
approved and the directors were authorised to allot and ) WREEEE BT RET
issue the new shares pursuant thereto. HiRfD o

(d) On March 7, 2002, 69,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each were (d) RZZZ_F=AtH AARABBEE
issued at HK$0.6 per ordinary share for cash through an ERAHABETAEETRBR - UER
initial public offer by way of placing and public offer. The &3 AR0.678 7T % 1769,000,000% & A%
Group planned to use the net proceeds from the shares HEOIBTERARNERR S -
issued mainly for expansion and as general working capital
of the Group.

25. SHARE OPTION 25. BREE

The Company has the following share option schemes: ARBAENTERES

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (i) ENGE T R
On February 1, 2002, the Company adopted a share RZZEZZF-A—B ' KARFEK
option scheme (“the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme"). M—IEER R E ([ R ARABK

AilRS AT 211 ) o

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is BRAFABKRATERESS 2 B
to provide incentives to recognise the contribution EEXRBHAEREERR 'SHA
of certain directors, employees and advisor of the REBRNDEBBHERZABERA
Company to the growth of the Group and/or to the BlRIER ([8I%R]) LB ERZ
listing of the Company’s share on the Growth FTE=Z  EERAARER - ©
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Ui =N GRS g
Kong Limited (“GEM"). The period within which the REZBRNARN_TZE_F_A—
shares must be taken up under an option of the Pre- Bst+F R AR BUEITRE
IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period BRREER TITEZAEARA X
of 10 years commencing on February 1, 2002. There DEARE o B N BEARAE - RIZER B
is no minimum period for which an option must be HHBEH T ABXFIET -
held before it can be exercised. HK$1 is payable on
acceptable of an option within 28 days from the
date of grant.
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25.

SHARE OPTION (continued)

(i

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed
46,900,000 shares, which represent 10% of the share
in issue as at March 7, 2002, being the date of listing
of the Company’s shares on GEM, unless approval
from the Company’s shareholders has been obtained.
The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be ranted
to each individual in any twelve-month period up to
and including the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue at the date of grant unless
approval from Company’s shareholders has been
obtained.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date
of grant of the share option to the ten anniversary
of the date of grant. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company, and shall be at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated on GEM’ daily quotation
sheets on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Details of the movement in share options granted on
February 18, 2002 under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme during each of the two years ended March
31, 2003 are set out as follows:

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =

25.

BRE (&)

(i)

BRAMEBRATERETE (A)
BrIEEARDBIRRES A - BIE AR
Gk NG Gl
ABEAZBRHDAHETTBS
46,900,000 f& + [EAR BB =
EE_F-AtAERIERETE
HZBEITRA10% - & RERIA
ITRHBRER  WEHEEREA
HipT +— B A H T AR A (8
EELBESEA)  ZERHRET
Rz EREETF2EHBEAR
NARZREBHZBERITRAZ
1% @ RIEBEARDBIRELE - B
ANEEREERETZEMAL -

BREVREHBREIHEER
HEHTBAFABERKTE - AAF
Bz ERRREESETE @ M
RTIN=BZ2&%E : (\ARAKR
RERLBREEBRAZERE AR
ERARZEHE (RN EEZ
RO RS RERA B2 FHk™m
B R(iA2AIRNEE -

RAR B R A B R A A0 BB AR AT IR
“EE-F AT NBRHBZER
BREBE_ZT=F=H=1—H
EMEFEESHEMT
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25. SHARE OPTION (continued) 25. BREE)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRARBRABERETSE (&)
For the year ended March 31, 2003 REgE " FEE=—F=-F=+—HIFFEF
Number of share options
BREXE
Exercise price  Outstanding at  Lapsed during  Outstanding at
Exercisable period per share April 1, 2002 the year  March 31, 2003
R-BR=F R-ZB2=ZF
MA-A REE ZA=t-H
TERE TEE WRETE ki W RETE
HK$
-y
Category: Directors
Bhl &% September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 4,500,000 (1,500,000) 3,000,000
CEE_FENAALBEZRRE_AT+A
March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 03 4,500,000 (1,500,000) 3,000,000
PSS AtRE-FTTRF-ATLE
March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 03 4,500,000 (1,500,000) 3,000,000
—ZENFE-A+tRE_EERF_AT++A
13,500,000 (4,500,000) 9,000,000
Category: Employees
Bhl: BB September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 3,200,000 (800,000) 2,400,000
CEE_FENAALBE_ZRRE_AT+A
March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 03 3,200,000 (800,000) 2,400,000
—77 H ﬂJEElj:—77£$ )EH"{ZH
March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 03 3,200,000 (800,000) 2,400,000
—ZENFE-A+tRE_EERF_AT++A
9,600,000 (2,400,000) 7,200,000
Category: Legal advisor
Bh :EEER September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 800,000 - 800,000
ZEE_FENALBRE_ZRRE_AT+A
March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 03 800,000 - 800,000
ZZZ-A-AtBE_EERF_AT+A
March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 03 800,000 - 800,000
—ZENE-A+RE_EERF_AT++A
2,400,000 - 2,400,000
Total all categories
LHER 25 25,500,000 (6,900,000) 18,600,000
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New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDings LIMITED #i &

E-ET=F=A=+-HLEFE

SHARE OPTION (continued)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2002

25.

fBIRE ()
(i) ERDBEBRABRET (F)

REZE-FFE_F=-A=+—HAIUF

E

Number of share options

BREXE
Exercise price  Outstanding at  Granted during  Outstanding at
Exercisable period per share April 1, 2001 the year  March 31, 2002
R-22-F R-BR=F
mA-A rEE ZA=t-H
TERE TEE WRETE B W RETE
HKS
-y
Category: Directors
Bhl- 2% September 7, 2002 - February 17, 2005 03 - 4,500,000 4,500,000
ZEE_ENALREZRRE_AT+A
March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 03 - 4,500,000 4,500,000
ZZZ-A=AtBE-TTRE-A+LA
March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 03 - 4,500,000 4,500,000
—ZENFE-A+RE_ZERF_AT+A
- 13,500,000 13,500,000
Category: Employees
il E8 September 7, 2002 - February 7, 2005 03 - 3,200,000 3,200,000
CEE_ENALRE_ERRE_AT+A
March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 03 - 3,200,000 3,200,000
ZZZ-A=AtBE-TTRE-A+LA
March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 03 - 3,200,000 3,200,000
—ZENFE-AtRE_EERF_AT+A
- 9,600,000 9,600,000
Category: Legal advisor
Bh : EEER September 7, 2002 - February 7, 2005 03 - 800,000 800,000
ZEE_FENAALREZRRE_AT+A
March 7, 2003 - February 17, 2005 03 - 800,000 800,000
—ZZ-A-AtBE_EZRF_AT+A
March 7, 2004 - February 17, 2005 03 - 800,000 800,000
—ZENFE-A+RE_ZERF_AT++A
- 2,400,000 24,000,000
Total all categories
LRERE - 25,500,000 25,500,000

ZEERERA

=
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(i)
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Total consideration received during the year ended
March 31, 2002 from the share option participants
for taking up the share options granted amounted
to HK$8. No charge is recognised in the consolidated
income statement in respect of the value of options
granted in 2002.

Share Option Scheme

On February 1, 2002, another share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme"”) was approved pursuant
to a written resolution of the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to selected individuals
to subscribe for shares in the Company as incentives
or rewards for their contributions to the Group. The
Board may, as its discretion, invite any full-time or
part-time employee of the Company or any member
of the Group, including any director of any member
of the Group and any advisor or consultant (in areas
of technical, financial or corporate managerial) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries to take up
options to subscribe for the share in the Company
for a consideration of HK$1 each lot of share option
granted. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid
for a period of 10 years commencing on February 1,
2002. The option period shall not be less than 3
years and not exceed 10 years from the date of
acceptance of option. There is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. HK$1 is payable on acceptable of an option
within 28 days from the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 46,900,000
shares, which represent 10% of the share in issue as
at March 7, 2002, being the date of listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM, unless approval from the
Company’s shareholders has been obtained. The total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
each individual in any twelve-month period up to
and including the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue at the date of grant unless
approval from Company’s shareholders has been
obtained.

For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—HIFE

25. BRE#E)

(i)

(ii)

BRAABBRATERETS (8)
REE-_ZZ-_F=A=1+—H8It
FEARMZENERBREZBRE
2HEEWRZBERES L AESE
T AERGARRBRAREBER
“EE _EREZEREEENR
R 8 o

BREE
R-ZBEZ-_F_F—H AR}
BARR —HERRZR ZIER
Mm—IEME R REEE o

BRESE ZBNEREEARAR
AEREALROBERERBAR
Aty - (ERBRERSNREMIE
HEBER REkEK - EF G0
HEBFAR AR AEEERKE
AR ZEMERARBES (BF
AREEAKE AR CEMES)
B A X 8] 3 AR ] Bl B 2 Bl A A
it - MBAEEERRE 2 EfH
AANER - BABRENRZEA
ARBD - MEABREZALE
RENERHBEREM1 ALK
B -BREASKE -_TT_F_
A—BEFTFARABN - BiES
A AL R=F MABBHEN
TR B g+ - BERERER
FiifEzmBARERLHE - 1
RAERCE - BZERNE G B EES
“tNABXHER -

BRIEEARDBIBESE - BIBTAR
Gk NG Gl
ABEAZBRHDLAHETTES
46,900,000 f& + [EAR BB =
EE_F=-AtAERIERETE
HZBRTIRAN10% - & HEER A
TROBRER  WESERDA
HipT +— BB H R A A (B
ERLBHSA)  2EREEET
Rz EREETF2EHBEAAR
RARZRHBBZEBITRAZ
1% @ BRIEBEARDBIRELE - B
ANEERLERETZENAL -
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25.  SHARE OPTION (continued) 25. BRE(&E)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BXRARBRABERETSE (&)
Options may be exercised at any time from the date ERETHRRLEREARLEER
of grant of the share option to the ten anniversary HEBH+EFARRITE - AQF
of the date of grant. The exercise price shall be Bz BREHESSET © M
determined by the directors of the Company, and RTI=B &% : (\ARARK
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of REHERERHREERES B &K
the Company’s shares as stated on GEM's daily BRARZIHE : (IRIDNEE
quotation sheets on the date of grant; (ii) the average BB AR ERA B2 FHkm
closing price of the shares for the five business days B RGiAABRNEME °
immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share options have been granted by the Company BARRBERMBRESBIARARE
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption. X R AR o

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be REERARBRATERETS - BkiE

issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and BRSBTS B AR 2 (] Eo A

yet to be exercised under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, ATEIPTR M R AT BT 2 P B MR EITE

the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes involving EREBITRRA TRITZRNE CER
the issue or grant of options must not exceed 30% of the BEIAGEERNARTREZTRM

Company’s shares in issue from time to time. 30% °

26. RESERVES 26. f#E
Accumulated
Share profits
premium (losses) Total
RIEF
% 17 3% (B (B #8) @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

THE COMPANY AAF

At April 1, 2001 RZZEZE-—FMHA—H - - -

Premium arising on initial public BRARZEESE

offer i 34,500,000 - 34,500,000

Expenses incurred in connection IR A X

with the issue of shares (15,491,277) - (15,491,277)

Profit for the year F 2 A - 590,833 590,833

At March 31, 2002 —2FE-_F=FA=+—H 19,008,723 590,833 19,599,556

Dividend paid ENRE = (586,250) (586,250)

Net loss for the year FEERFHE - (53,782,499) (53,782,499)

At March 31, 2003 —2E=F=FA=+—H 19,008,723 (53,777,916)  (34,769,193)

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =
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27.

28.
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For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—HIFE

RESERVES (continued) 26. f#fE (&)
The Company's reserves available for distribution represent R B Al 9 Ik e 8 B IR 10 04 1B T R &% 7
the share premium and accumulated profits (losses). Under (B1) - REFESHSEEE2ERANE
the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman (&1 ([RADE]) - ARBIRGIEBA
Islands (the “Companies Law"), the share premium of the RRERED RS ZARE - HERETFARDA
Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to AEERLARMAE - BERAIERRAR
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum EEHRAZNREE  NEENEER
or Articles of Association and provided that immediately BEXBAERIBNEL - AELS
following the distribution or dividend the Company is able ERZARE - BEARFALER - R
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of ERARAARE#R A ARETH M
business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of HHNBRAEERRTEFTEZEMHE
Association, dividends may be declared and paid out of the RREERA LM  c ERBLTERERA
profits of the Company, realised or unrealised, or from any RET @ BREITAI B KRG EEBRIARE
reserve set aside from profits which the directors determine REELRg 2 EMEMES KRR
is no longer needed. With the sanction of an ordinary BETRE XM -
resolution dividends may also be declared and paid out of
share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with the
Companies Law.
In the opinion of the directors, as at March 31, 2003, the EERR RNZEE=F=A=+—8"
Company does not have any reserves available for distribution ARARNEA DR 2 EAREE (CTEZ
(2002: distributable reserves comprise of share premium and FAMEDENFEEHEREBEROEE R R
accumulated profits totaling HK$19,599,556). 7 A1119,599,556 /87T ) ©
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 27. EEFHEXRZ
During the year, the Group acquired, technical know-how of RAEER - AEEYEE13,900,000% 7T
HK$13,900,000 and has settled HK$9,900,000. The creditor BT & - I B % 149,900,000 T o &1
had confirmed subsequent to the balance sheet date that ABREE B RRRAE B L T Z(E
the outstanding balance of HK$4,000,000 would not be H i1 g ZRkEERH174,000,000% 7T &4
demanded for repayment within twelve months from the o
balance sheet date.
WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT COMMITMENT 28. MBVEBABAE
THE GROUP
r5HE
2003 2002
—BE=F —ET_F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Commitment in respect of website Rk JrA A )
development contracted for but not BRSBTS R B
provided in the financial statements 7 R 200,000 300,000

ez R ER A2 A New CHNESE Mepicine Holpings LIMITED
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29.

30.

31.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

THE GROUP

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitment for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease in respect of rented premises which fall due
within one year amounting to HK$29,434 (2002:
HK$750,000).

Operating lease payments represents rentals payable by the
Group for its retail and office properties. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of approximately one year
and rentals are fixed over that period.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group established a joint venture with a third party
during the year ended March 31, 2002 and initially
contributed HK$1 as capital. At the balance sheet date, the
Group has committed to inject additional share capital into
the joint venture of HK$499,999 (2002: HK$499,999).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all employees. The MPF Scheme is
registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect of the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

The retirement benefits cost charged to income statement
represents contributions payable to the MPF scheme by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

At the balance sheet date, there was no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future contributions (2002:
Nil).

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDiNGs LIMITED %7 8 % & B 5 R 2 =

29.

30.

31.

REHNAEE

rEE

REER  AEERBETATHECERY
HAZHENE  E—FRIBZKRE&
DHREEER29,434B T (Z BT _F :
750,000/ 7T) °

RERNAENARETEERRAE
Xzl HOFHYHOA—F HE
EZHEARE T -

BEXREE
REBEE-_ZE_F=A=1+—HILFEE
RN AREBR—(UF=FR I HEED
¥ WS RMBTAERER - RNEE
B AEEAFERNZAECETIABINE
£ /5499,999% 7T, (ZTF — 4 : 499,999
BIT) °

R S ER R |

ASERMBRESNM—RRHELES
Al ([Riaesrall) - BB E HRE
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. EHREALRS
In addition to transactions and balances with related parties BrUicE6 « 7 19K 22FTH = A @@
disclosed in notes 6, 7, 19 and 22, the Group has entered ATHETZR G R *T_M\ REER
into the following transactions with related parties during REEHEHEATGETTIR
the year: 2
Name of related party Nature of transaction Notes 2003 2002
EHEALER RoEME 3 i =F —EZTC
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fairco Investments Limited Rental paid and payable 1,2 900,000 900,000
AR EBRAA ENKENES
Ms. Leung Oi Wah Interest income 3 - 1,170,000
REER+ FE WA
SRI Medicine research and
development costs 1,4 - 1,019,783
7o) 1| 7 28 S 5T A 2B ERERFEKAE
Notes: it et -
(1) The transaction was determined based on the terms agreed (1) RSB @R B FIHE 2 16 i &
by the companies concerned. iE °
(2) Mr. Wong Cheah Foo, a director of the Company, has (2) EEEEELERZAREEERE
beneficial interest in this company. 7 o
(3) There was no interest levied on the amount due from Ms. (3) REBEZE-ZT=F=A=1+—HILF
Leung Oi Wah, a director of the Company, for the year B AAREFRBELTRNZFKE
ended March 31, 2003. Interest income for the year ended REFEFE - BE_TT=F=R=
March 31, 2002 was determined based on interest rate of T—BEFEZMEWMADRLZ T 24
5.45% per annum on outstanding balance of amount due FIRETFE5.45%2 FIRIKE o
from Ms. Leung.
(4) SRl is a substantial shareholder of the Company. (4) B EREMARRATEERR
33. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 33. WEBESBHE
Subsequent to March 31, 2003, the Group had incurred the N_ZEZ=F=A=+—H AEEL%E
following events: T HRIE
0) From April, 2003 and up to the date of the financial 0) BE_EE=-FNARENEENBER
statements, the Group had temporarily closed its retail *BH - AEEREABESARSTHE
outlet in Hong Kong due to the outbreak of SARS. KEAMERBEBZSEEH - &5
The directors expect the retail outlet will resume FRZTEEHENABER o
trading shortly.
(ii) In June, 2003, one creditor confirmed that it did not (if) R-BT=F P —LEEARE
intend to demand from the Group the repayment of R BHEERRET—BAARE
the outstanding balance of HK$4,000,000 within KA E A ER KX 44
twelve months from the balance sheet date. 4,000,000/ 7T ©
AnNuAL REPORT 2003 £ # g R ER 2 A New CHNESE MEDICINE HolDINGS LIMITED
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33.

34.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT (continued) 33.

(iii) In June, 2003, a substantial shareholder injected
funding of HK$2,000,000 into the Group to meet
some of the Group’s financial obligations and
confirmed not to demand from the Group the
repayment of HK$2,000,000 within twelve months
from the balance sheet date.

(iv) In June, 2003, the Group made an announcement
that it proposed to enter into an agreement with an
independent third party (the “Vendor”), pursuant to
which the Group will acquire the formulae of five
health supplement products from the Vendor for a
total consideration of HK$9,000,000, which will be
satisfied by way of the allotment and issue of
90,000,000 new shares of the Company at HK$0.10
each to the Vendor.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 34.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at March 31, 2003
are as follows:

HEHAREE (F)
(iii) R-BEZ=FRA —ZTEREM
$Elﬁmzwammﬁﬁvuwé$
ETHBREXMES  MEEE
Hx%ﬁ&waa FEHRBT_EART
e EZRAEEERE £32,000,000%8

G, ©

(iv) RZZZE=F A AEERMEZ
H—BYE=%([EF])FIZ— B
.%z Bt AEBESRESKBERE
REBEMZET - #K{849,000,000
B SN AR AR E SRR
£790,000,0008% A& 1 71 Z IR EI(E0. 1078
TLHRL °

o= NG
R-ZEZ=F=A=+—0 ARAEZKHBA
AIFFBEWT

Issued Proportion of nominal
Place of and fully value of issued
incorporation/  Class of paid up capital held
Name of subsidiary operation share held capital by the Company  Principal activities
BEfT ERREE
B3 R  R2E BRITRAE
i) PNCEE e 5l BRBRE HEBDW TEXK
Directly Indirectly
E# &
% %
NCM Sciences Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Inactive
Limited BH Tk 10,0007 7T EmeEs
NCM Shoji Co. Limited  Japan Ordinary JYP10,000,000 - 70 Retailing of pharmaceutical
=N T B 10,000,000 H [l products
TEEBEQ
New Chinese Medicine  British Virgin Ordinary Us$200 100 - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands TR 200E T REER
RERAES
New Chinese Medicine ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Limited B TER 10,0007 7T distribution of
NEEFRAA pharmaceutical products
REERKRD HEEEmD
New Chinese Medicine ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Internet based medical
(HK) Limited B TR 10,0007 7T treatment and retailing
HRE(EE) AR AR of modem
Chinese medicines
NEBBRER
BERERTRETE
New Chinese Medicine ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Inactive
International Limited &8 EiE ik 10,000 7T EmeEs

New CHiNeSE MEDICINE HolDings LIMITED #i &

ZZEKRER A A

ANNUAL REPORT 2003 #




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % #it # M 3

For the year ended March 31,2003 BE-TT=F=-A=+—HIFE

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. KMELABHE (&)
Issued Proportion of nominal
Place of and fully value of issued
incorporation/  Class of paid up capital held
Name of subsidiary operation share held  capital by the Company  Principal activities
BEfT ERREE
SMmARL R R2E BRTRAE
i) PNCEE e 5l BRBRE HEBRDHL TEXK
Directly Indirectly
X A&
% %
New Chinese Medicine Commonwealth  Ordinary Us$1,000 - 100 Owner of the registered
(Website) Limited of the L@k 1,000% T domain name of
R E(HE) AR AR Northern www.newchinesemedic.com
Mariana www.newchinesemedic.com
Islands HEzERHAA
LEEDH
EBHM
Wondergold Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Retailing of pharmaceutical
BEARRA Lk 10,000 7T products
TEREEm
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Year ended March 31,

BZ=A=1+—HILEE
2000 2001 2002 2003
—ETTF _—_FE-HF C—FTE2-F 2=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Results ES
Turnover ] 37,196,115 34,096,317 26,595,352 14,021,237
Profit (loss) before taxation i A v Al (E5#8) 16,905,040 6,217,705 2,424,505 | (27,834,737)
Taxation i I8 (2,600,000)  (1,107,734) (269,766) (3,848)
Profit (loss) before minority A 5T 2 B % 5 # 25 Al
interest Al () 14,305,040 5,109,971 2,154,739 | (27,838,585)
Minority interest DER R Em - - - 191,850
Profit (loss) for the year % B8 fE (R & &
attributable i Al (& 18)
to shareholders 14,305,040 5,109,971 2,154,739 | (27,646,735)
At March 31,
R=B=+—H
—ETTF _—FTEHF C—FTE-F =F
2000 2001 2002 2003
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEE 27,395,308 44,839,980 42,297,332 20,409,345
Total liabilities and minority  #2 8 (& &
interest DB R R F (14,316,251)  (26,660,921) (4,053,282) | (10,295,478)
Net assets FEE 13,079,057 18,179,059 38,244,050 10,113,867
Note: Ftat -

Pursuant to a group reorganisation to rationalise the structure of the
Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the

AERRA RRRNETER ARIMERA
Frl) IR mE ([RIER]) £ AR T&EWE’AE
AT 5 (A&E])ETER((EEEAR])

A (B

C AEERAK

Growth Enterprises Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong SEZEE - ARARZZEE—FN\NAREBKNALEE
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company became the holding company ZERRA c ARBRNMR-ZZZ-_F=R+tHAEL—HE
of the Group on August 6, 2001. The shares of the Company have been EBRAAIZER £ - AEBKBEESABRER AR
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange with effect from March 7, 2002. Emage o [ $%.2§ﬁ&ﬁ2§)}%ﬁﬁ£\{;} =t
The Group resulting from the group reorganisation is regarded as a continuing HERR  WREARA—EALIEEZERAR K
entity. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Group have been prepared SEEE_TTTFER_TT—F=RA=T—HIEWF
on the merger accounting basis as if the Company had always been the ERFEZEERBEBARAN_TE_F-_A=-+HH
holding company of the Group. The results for the two years ended March HEHBRER o

31, 2000 and 2001 have been extracted from the Company’s prospectus

dated February 25, 2002.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2003 Annual General
Meeting of New Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
will be held at Meeting Room 1/F.,, Wing Fai Shopping Arcade, 52
Wing Kwong Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong on August 8,
2003 (Friday) at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1.

To receive and consider the audited financial statements of
the Company and the reports of the directors and auditors
for the year ended March 31, 2003.

To re-elect the retiring directors and to authorise the Board
of Directors to fix the directors’ remuneration.

To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the Board of
Directors to fix their remuneration.

As special business, to consider and if thought fit, pass the
following ordinary resolutions:

A. "THAT

(a)

subject to paragraph A(b) below, the exercise by
the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined)
of all the powers of the Company to purchase its
own shares on the Growth Enterprise Market (the
“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or on any other
stock exchange on which the securities of the
Company may be listed and recognised by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject
to and in accordance with all applicable laws and
the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (as amended from time to time) or of
any other stock exchange, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved and
authorised;

the aggregate nominal amount of the shares of
the Company authorised to be repurchased by the
Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph
A(a) above during the Relevant Period shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company in issue as at
the date of passing this resolution and the
authority pursuant to paragraph A(a) shall be
limited accordingly; and

UBEMBEZRERAR ([ARA])EE
RZZEZ=F/\ANRB(EHH) LFTRBERE
BENEABKALE2RAERGIREEERT
“ET-FRFBEFARE  i@m FIEE

1. BERBEWARREE-_ZSE=F=H
S+ AEFEZEERUBERERE

TERHMREE -

2. BERAESNREEZCETESH
%o

3. ERREMEEAEESEEEEMS

4 HARBIEE  EELBIERBETIE
AREE

A [8&

(@) ETXAGBEZBRET  2ER
BIRTHERREARAESR
e (228 NARME (T
ATX)A - KiE— @R 2%
PIREEBERIMERLDHE
(TEEZX PR ) BIRIREE 75 £ A
Bl (REAETE X)) 2R R A
HUMBEHRRGHZHBR 178
ARBzZ—EN  EBRI
EiR=IE 3 = NI E 2= 2
TERBEFRBPEEHERE
BEeRBRMABL T ERAZ
TMEMEFRZABRAR
A2

(b) AABMKEEXAQBRZEER
FRYERAAELD AR ER
e EERE  THEBBAR
ARARERBBEAZEHE
ThRAEBEZAES 2T WA
BRETRUR - R
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B.

()

for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the passing of
this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by the articles of association of
the Company or any applicable law to be held;
and

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this resolution by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting.”

“THAT

(a)

subject to paragraph B(b) below, a general
mandate be and is hereby unconditionally given
to the Directors to exercise all the powers of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) to allot, issue and deal with
the new shares in the capital of the Company or
securities convertible into shares, or options,
warrants or similar rights to subscribe for any
shares, and to make and grant offers, agreements
and options which would or might require the
exercise of such powers, whether during the
continuance of the Relevant Period or thereafter;

the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally
to be allotted or dealt with pursuant to the
approval in paragraph B(a) above during the
Relevant Period, otherwise than pursuant to the
following, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue as at the date of passing this
resolution and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly:

(i) a rights issue where shares are offered for a
period fixed by the Directors to shareholders
on the register on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then holdings of such

New CHiNesE MEDICINE HolDinGs LiMITED % 8 % # B B R 2 =

()

RARZERME - AR ]
ERAARBZRABBZAEETT
P ZHBIEZHE

() ARATERRBEXRS
RERE

(i) BARAZ AR KA
8 B 2 AR E AR T
TERRBFREEATH
HZHREMZE %X

(i) AREFEREAE LI
ARARELEBASE
BESET2E - |

B. [B&&

(a)

ETXBOEZHART - 2E R
BRHEEESSNEHTE
(EZ BT RAITEARR Z
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BARRBBASDZROHAR
BMARNHZES - AAIRBE
iz ER i - RBEE L
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B(a) B ATt A T LARC 3 s fR 1F
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shares (subject to such exclusion or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regard, as appropriate,
to any restrictions or obligations under the
laws of, or the requirements of any recognised
regulatory body or stock exchange in, or in
any territory applicable to the Company);

(i) an issue of shares under any share option
scheme or similar arrangement for the time
being adopted for the grant or issue to
officers and/or employees of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares or
rights to acquire shares of the Company and
approved by the Stock Exchange;

(i) any issue of shares in the Company upon the
exercise of subscription rights attaching to
any warrants of the Company; or

(iv) any scrip dividend scheme or similar
arrangement implemented in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company;
and

(c) for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the passing of
this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company
is required by the articles of association of
the Company or any applicable law to be held;
and

(iii) the revocation or variation of the authority
given under this Resolution by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting.”

C. “THAT conditional upon resolutions 4A and 4B being
passed, the general mandate granted to the directors
of the Company pursuant to resolution 4B to exercise
the powers of the Company to allot shares in the
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capital of the Company be and is hereby extended by
the addition to the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital which may be allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by the
directors of the Company pursuant to such general
mandate an amount representing the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company
repurchased by the Company under the authority
granted pursuant to resolution 4A, provided that such
amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue
as at the date of passing this resolution.”

By order of the Board
Wong Cheah Foo
Chairman

Hong Kong, June 30, 2003

Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not
be a member of the Company. In order to be valid, the form of proxy
must be deposited with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong
Kong, Secretaries Limited, Ground Floor, BEA Harbour View Centre, 56
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong together with any power of
attorney or other authority, under which it is signed, or a notarially
certified copy of that power or authority, not less than 48 hours before
the time for holding the meeting.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
August 6, 2003 to Friday, August 8, 2003, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Secretaries
Limited, Ground Floor, BEA harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday,
August 5, 2003.

An explanatory statement containing further details regarding the

proposed Resolution 4 above will be sent to shareholders shortly
together with the 2003 annual report.
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